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To the Stockholders of H.E.R.C. Products Incorporated:

Herc Products is happy to report that our 2001 sales from continuing
.. . operations grew approximately 40% from $4,267,000 in 2000 to $5,967,000
Notice of _2002 in 2001, with a net loss of $164,000 compared to a net loss of $257,000 in’
Annual Meeting - 2001 and 2000, respectively. EBITDA for 2001 was approximately $157,000
and Pr()xy compared to an EBITDA of approximately negative $17,000 for 2000.

Statement We attribute the grov&th in sales to both our continued expansion in our core

‘ ~ marine pipe cleaning business and the addition of our tank cleaning business.
For the year, marine pipe cleaning revenue grew by about $550,000, while tank
cleaning created more than $1.3 million in additional revenue. However, due
to the general economic recession in the US economy, this growth was offset
by a decline in revenue from our fire protection and chemical markets.

Despite the challenges of the first quarter, the Company has improved. The
2001 Annual losses in the first quarter were primarily the result of low margin Navy work
Rep()rt to based on the design of some ships we are occasionally contractually obligated
Stockholders ' ~ to perform. Thi‘s low margin work is normally offset by the total number of

’ ships we get during a quarter, particularly those ships we generally contract
in the first quarter of the year. However, this year, we believe we again
experienced some of the same issues witnessed in 2000’s poor fourth quarter
where the Navy suffered from the extra expense of the USS Cole bombing
coupled with a repair and maintenance funding shortfall in the final days of
the Clinton administration. In summary, first quarter marine operations worked
on fewer ships at low margins. Fortunately, the number of low margin ships
was very small and the volume of ships being cleaned returned to normal in
the second quarter.

® Business

® Management’s
Discussion and

Analysis In addition to the lower revenue volume. and low margin work, during the first
quarter and early part of the second quarter, we also incurred the extra expenses
of entering the tank cleaning business and moving our manufacturing facility
to Virginia. By the third quarter the tank cleaning business was operating very
o Consolidated well and - we were already realizing the savings of our relocation.

Financial .. Accomplishing these two objectives allowed us to begin generating the type

Statements of revenue and profit we expected when we made these strategic decisions.

Due to our third quarter successes in tank cleaning, Herc was awarded work on
the nuclear carrier USS Truman with one of the large ship repair companies inside
the Norfolk Naval Shipyard. This was a very difficult job and the Norfolk Naval
Shipyard is a very stringent place in which to work. Our crews performed

. extremely well and Herc was consequently rewarded with additional work on the
carriers USS Enterprise and USS Roosevelt along with a much higher amount of
“down river” work. This type of growth is a testament to the selling, quality of
work, and customer service provided by our representatives in Virginia. Gross
margins have consistently exceeded our expectations and we are continuing to |
expand our customer base with the other active-shipyards in the area.
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The addition of tank cleaning to our service line in Virginia has been successfill en‘oﬁgh that we have extended
our growth strategy to include entering that business in other major US- ports ihad Srve the N avy. We plan to
implement this strategy, much as we did in Norfolk, by investing in the start up of a tank cleaning business unit
or by acquiring a tank service business currently in place. Ulfimately, our method of implementation will depend
on the acquisition opportunities we uncover and how our work develops with the Navy in our core ship pipe
cleaning business.

We are also considering other areas of acquisition that would be compatible with our Navy work and, as we
have seen in tank cleaning, synergistic with our long term plans for our Specialty, Potable and Fire Protection
business. One area of opportunity includes the application of our tank and pipe cleaning resources to perform.
more work in non-marine areas. . ’

We are ‘currently preparing for the announced follow-on solicitation of our 5-year contract with the Navy for
CHT pipe system cleaning. We are working diligently on presentation content and organization in an effort to
renéw this best value contract and feel we have significant advantages in technology, experience, and geographic
reach over our potential competitors.

The use of our General Service Agreement (GSA) contract grew during the year with the cleaning of systems
other than CHT on US Navy ships. We performed the first chemical cleaning on a Counter Measure Washdown
System (CMWD) designed for defending against chemical and biological attack on Navy vessels, and
subsequently filed a patent to cover this type of cleaning. We also cleaned various fire mains on board various
ships and performed a cleaning job for the Egyptian Navy in Alexandria, Egypt, further demonstrating our system
versatility and ability to deploy to foreign ports of call.

This use of our GSA contract bodes well for continued work on more systems for the Navy, as well as for foreign
navies that use old US Navy ships. The number of ships transferred, leased, or sold by the US to foreign navies
exceeds the total number of ships in the current active US Naval fleet, makmg it a promising market for applying
Herc technology. By working with fleet management companies in Washington, we are accessing more
opportunities to do this type of work. The expanded use of our GSA contract has also contributed to our
worldwide capabilities for developing work with the Maritime Administration and Military Sealift Command
in places such as Singapore, which, as a regular maintenance location for the US Navy, could open more “in
theatre” type work for our core customer.

Due to the losses of the fourth quarter of 2000 and the first quarter of 2001, we resolved to consolidate and
reduce as many non-core expenses as possible in order to accelerate recovery once business increased. This
required the elimination of manufacturing, sales, and management positions in our specialty, potable and fire
protection markets, in addition to downsizing that resulted when we relocated our manufacturing facilities from
Phoenix to Virginia.

While we have maintained contact with these markets through the relationships we developed in the industry
and at major tradeshows, constrained budgets and overall belt tightening in the general business sectors made
our reductions and consolidation very timely. Whereas Specialty and Potable sales were up from $165,000 in
2000 to $224,000 in 2001, Fire Protection and Industrial Chemical Divisions were down approximately 70%
and 38% in 2001. The lack of significant revenue in S&P and the losses in Fire Protection and Industrial Chemical
required management to clear the deck and rethink our entry into these markets.

One asset we have conspicuously lacked is an individual experienced in the municipal and industrial cleaning
industry, with excellent relationships and credibility, to run our non-marine business. Late last year we hired
such an individual. This new management source has helped us open several new alliances with very large -
businesses in the water and wastewater treatment industry. These new alliances, coupled with our current
relationship with DuPont, allow us to leverage our resources with much larger partners and share our costs of
market development. In summary, these new relationships for Herc provide the technological support and
business know-how that will allow us to supply comprehensive solutlons to our customers’ corrosion and scahng
problems.

The win for our alliance partners is bilateral in that either their treatment chemistries are exposed to markets
that do not currently use their products, or, for a marketing fee from Herc, they are now able to provide their




customers with solutions for cleaning fouled systems. Either way, we have a much larger marketing effort for
minimal capital requirements from Herc with the majority of marketing related expenses incurred only after work
has been contracted. ‘

International businesses have also shown interest in our patented positions for chemical cleaning resulting in
license agreements in Brazil and China, and a tentative municipal test with a large water utility in France, While
we minimize our expectations on foreign activity, good possibilities are on the horizon. Because we do not
currently have any real capacity to support the development of our technology in foreign countries, we rely on
the licensees themselves to come to our job sites for training.

DuPont has supported us with much assistance in relation to our foreign markets. At the same time they are
developing foreign markets for our products, they have been able to work with our Brazilian licensee in
developing industrial work and supplying us raw materials. They have also been involved in meetings between
our licensees and large potential municipal customers. This has obviously brought us greater credibility and faster
eniry into potential business. As we grow in the future, these types of licenses and relationships could give us
accelerated growth and market development for our key patented technologies.

Beginning with the second quarter of 2001, we have been pleased with the development trend of our business.
Revenues are continuing to grow, cash is increasing, and we are successfully opening new market opportunities.
Tinvite you to read the Company Form10-KSB where you will find many additional details relating to the growth
of our business. We encourage as many people as are able come to attend the annual meeting of stockholders
where we look forward to answering any specific questions you may have.

Thank you for allowing me to serve,

Steven Carl
Chairman/CEO




H.E.R.C. PRODUCTS INCORPORATED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
AUGUST 1, 2002

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of H.E.R.C. Products Incorporated, a Delaware corporation, will be
held at 10:00 a.m., on Thursday, August 1, 2002, at the Country Inn & Suites, 20221 North 29" Avenue, Phoenix,
Arizona for the following purposes:

1. To elect four directors to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until their successors
are elected and qualified.

2. To approve an amendment to our Performance Equity Plan to increase the number of shares of our
common stock reserved for issuance pursuant to the plan from 1,000,000 to 4,000,000.

3. To ratify the appointment of McGladrey & Pullen LLP as our independent auditors for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2002.

4. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment of the
meeting.

These items of business are more fully described in the proxy statement accompanying this notice.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on June 14, 2002 are entitled to notice of and to vote at
the meeting.

All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the meeting in person. To assure your representation at the
meeting, however, we urge to mark, sign, date, and return the enclosed proxy as promptly as possible in the postage-
prepaid envelope enclosed for that purpose. If you attend the meeting, you may vote in person even if you
previously have returned a proxy.

Sincerely,

Phoenix, Arizona S. Steven Carl
June 17, 2002 President




H.E.R.C. PRODUCTS INCORPORATED
2215 West Melinda Lane, Suite A
Phoenix, Arizona 85027

PROXY STATEMENT

VOTING AND OTHER MATTERS

General '

The enclosed proxy is solicited on behalf of H.E.R.C. Products Incorporated, a Delaware corporation, by
our board of directors for use at our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, August
1, 2002, or at any adjournment of the meeting, for the purposes set forth in this proxy statement and in the
accompanying notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The meetmg w1ll be held at the Countxy Inn & Suites,
,20221 North 29th Avenue, Phoeriix, Arizona. ~

These proxy sohcltatlon matenals are. belng first malled on or about June 18, 2002 to all stockhelders
entitled to vote at the meeting. - :

Voting Securities and Voting Rights

Stockholders of record at the close of business on June 14, 2002 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the
meeting. On the record date, there were outstandlng 11,944,872 shares of our common. stock. Each holder of
common stock voting at the meeting, either in person or by proxy, may cast one vote per share of common stock
held on all matters to be voted on at the meeting.

~ The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of one half of the total number of shares entitled to vote
constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. Assuming that a quorum is present, (a) the
affirmative vote of a plurality of the shares of our common stock present in person or represented by proxy at the
meeting and entitled to vote is required for the election of directors and (b) the affirmative vote of a majority of the
shares of our common stock present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote is required
to approve the amendment to our Performance Equity Plan and to ratify the appointment of McGladrey & Pullen
LLP as our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2002.

Votes cast by proxy or in person at the meeting will be tabulated by the election inspectors appointed for
the meeting and will determine whether a quorum is present. The election inspectors will treat abstentions as shares
that are present and entitled to vote for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum, but as unvoted for
purposes of determining the approval of any matter submitted to the stockholders for a vote. If a broker indicates on
the proxy that it does not have discretionary authority as to certain shares to vote on a particular matter, those shares
will not be considered as present and entitled to vote with respect to that matter.

Voting of Proxies

When a proxy is properly executed and returned, the shares it represents will be voted at the meeting as
directed. If no specification is indicated, the shares will be voted (1) "for" the election of nominees set forth in this
proxy statement; (2) "for" approval of the amendment to the Performance Equity Plan to increase the number of
shares of common stock reserved for issuance pursuant to that plan; and (3) "for" the ratification of the appointment
of McGladrey & Pullen LLP as our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2002,
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Revocability of Proxies
Any person giving a proxy may revoke the proxy at any time before its use by

o delivering to us written notice of revocation;
e delivering to us a duly executed proxy bearing a later date; or

e attending the meeting and voting in person.
Solicitation

We will pay the cost of this solicitation. In addition, we may reimburse brokerage firms and other persons
representing beneficial owners of shares for expenses incurred in forwarding solicitation materials to such beneficial
owners. Some of our directors or officers may solicit proxies, personally or by telephone or e-mail, without
additional compensation. : c '

Annual Report and Other Matters

Our 2001 Annual Report to Stockholders, which was mailed to stockholders with or preceding this proxy
statement, ‘contains financial and other information about our company, but is not incorporated into this proxy
stateinent and is not to be considered a part of these proxy soliciting materials or subject to Regulations 14A or 14C
or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The information contained in
the "Report of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors" below shall not be deemed "filed" with the Securities
and Exchange Commission or subject to Regulations 14A or 14C or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange
Act. :

- We will provide upon written request, without charge to each stockholder of record as of the record
date, a copy of our annual report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 as filed with
the SEC. Any exhibits listed in the Form 10-KSB report also will be furnished upon request at the actual
expense incurred by us in furnishing such exhibits. Any such requests should be directed to our company's
secretary at our executive offices set forth in this proxy statement.




ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nominees

Our bylaws provide that the number of directors shall be fixed from time to time by resolution of our board
of directors. Currently, our board of directors is comprised of four members. All directors are elected at each
annual meeting of our stockholders. Directors hold office for one year or until their successors have been elected
and qualified. " o ’ ‘ :

A board ‘of four directors is to be elected at the meeting.- Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy holders
will vote the proxies received by them for each of the nominees named below. All of the nominees currently are
directors of our company. In the event that any such nominee is unable or declines to serve as a director at the time
of the meeting, the proxies will be voted for any nominee designated by the cuirent board of directors to fill the
vacancy. We do not expect that any nominee will be unable or will decline to serve as a director.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the nominees for directors.

Name Age Position Held

S. Steven Carl........ccccvvvvvveneanns 44 Chairman of the Board of Directors,” Chief Executive
Officer, and President

R. John Armstrong.........c..c.cc.... 58 Director

Robert Affholder ..........ccee... 66 Director

John B. Furman ....... ST .58 Director

S. Steven Carl has served as our Chairman of the Board of Directors since February 1996, and has served
as our Chief Executive Officer and as a director of our company since August 1995. Mr. Carl has served as our
President since May 1997, and also from August 1995 until February 1996. Mr. Carl served as the President and
Chief Executive Officer of CCT Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of our company acquired in May 1995.

R. John Armstrong has been a director of our company since January 1, 1999, Mr. Armstrong served 11
years in the U.S. Navy, with experience in ship design, construction, and maintenance, with a four year tour at a
SupShip (supervisor of shipbuilding office), serving in quality assurance, contracts, and planning departments in
addition to serving two years on the engineering faculty at the Naval Academy. Following his resignation from the
Navy in 1978, Mr. Armstrong served as a Project Manager and, ultimately, Executive Vice President of a
professional services company in Washington D.C., providing engineering and computer services to a broad
spectrum of clients until 1986. In 1986, Mr. Armstrong became the President of Seaward Marine Services, Inc.,
engaged in international diving services.

Robert W. Affholder has been a director of our company since October 1, 2000. Since 1996, Mr.
Affholder has been Senior Executive Vice President of Insituform Technologies, Inc., a public company. From
1995 until 1996, Mr. Affholder was Senior Vice President-Chief Operating Officer of North American Contracting
Operations of Insituform Technologies, Inc. Mr. Affholder was President of Insituform Mid-America, Inc. from
1994 until its acquisition by Insituform Technologies, Inc. in 1995, and was Vice Chairman of Insituform Mid-
America from 1993 until 1995.

John B. Furman has been a director of our company since May 2002. Since January 2000, Mr. Furman
was a Crisis Management Consultant working with the boards of various Phoenix, Arizona based publicly traded
companies. From November 1998 until January 2000, Mr. Furman was President, Chief Executive Officer, and a
Director of Rural Metro Corporation, a public company and a provider of emergency and fire protection services.
From 1983 until November 1998, Mr. Furman was a Senior Member and Chairman of the business law and financial
services group of O'Connor, Cavanagh, Anderson, Killingsworth and Beshears. From April 1978 until December
1983, Mr. Furman was Associate General Counsel for Waste Management, Inc.




Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors

Our board of directors held six meetings during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001. Mr. Affholder
attended fewer than 75% of the aggregate of (i) the total number of meetings of our board of directors held during
fiscal year 2001 and (ii) the total number of meetings held by all committees of our board of directors on which such
person served during fiscal year 2001.

Our bylaws authorize our board of directors to appoint among its members one or more committees
consisting of one or more directors. The Audit Committee, which currently consists of Messrs. Armsirong,
Affholder, and Furman, non-employee directors of our company, reviews the annual financial statements, any
significant accounting issues, and the scope of the audit with our independent auditors and discusses with the
auditors any other audit-related matters that may arise during the year. The Compensation Committee, which
consists of all of the members of our board of directors, reviews and acts on matters relating to compensation levels
and benefit plans for key executives of our company and administers and interprets our Performance Equity Plan
and 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan with respect to grants of stock options and awards to persons who at the time
of grant are key employees, officers, directors, and consultants of our company.

Director Compensation and Other Information

Directors who are employees of our company do not receive any additional compensation for serving as
members of our board of directors. Non-employee directors receive a retainer of $15,000 per year, payable as
follows:

e  $1,500 semi-annually on the first day of the second and fourth quarters following such election;

»  $1,000 for personal attendance at duly convened quarterly meetings of our board; and

s $2,000 in restricted common stock payable on the first day of each quarter measured on the close of
trading at the last trading day of the prior quarter. : ,




EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Summary of Cash and Other Compensation

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the compensation for the years ended
December 31, 1999, 2000, and 2001 paid to our Chief Executive Officer. None of our other executive officers
eamed cash compensation that exceeded $100,000 during the year ended December 31, 2001.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

| Long-Term Compensatmn

Awards
, . Restricted Securities
Name and . ‘ Stock Underlying All Other
Principal Positions - Year Salary(1) Bonus . Awards(2) Options(3) Compensation(4)
S. Steven Carl........... s 2001 $140,233  $25,000 . 125,000 $9,285
Chairman of the Board, 2000 129,706 13,600 -- -- 8,155
Chief Executive Officer, 1999 122,469 11,444 §16,500 -- 6,356

and President

(1) Mr. Carl also recerved certain perquisites, the value of Wthh did not exceed 10% of his salary and bonus durmg
fiscal 2001. :

(2) The awards of restricted stock are calculated by multlplymg the closmg market price of our common stock on
the date of grant by the number of shares awarded. In connection with his employment agreement Mr. Carl

© was granted 50,000 shares of restricted common stock at fair market value.

(3) The exercise prices of all stock options granted were equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the
date of grant. ‘

(4) Other compensatron consists of 401(k) plan matchmg contrrbutrons and an automobile allowance

Option Grants

The follcwing table provides information on stock options granted to Mr Carl during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001.

OPTION GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR .

Individual Grants

Percent of
. .Number of Total
Securities Options .
Underlying Granted to . Exercise
Options Employees in Price Expiration
Name Granted (#) Fiscal Year ($/Sh) Date
S. Steven Carl ..o 50,000(1) 10.4% $0.19 - 3/29/11
: 75,000(2) 15.6% $ 0.10 - 11/01/11

(1) All of the options vested and became exercisable on March 29, 2001.
(2) All of the options vested and became exercisable on November 1, 2001.




Year-end Option Holdings

The following table provides information with respect to options held by Mr. Carl as of December 31,
2001. Mr. Carl did not exercise options during the year ended December 31, 2001.

OPTIONS HELD AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001

Number of Securities
Underlying Unexercised
Options at Fiscal Year-End

Name ' Exercisable Unexercisable

S, Steven Carl(1) ..o 362,500 --

(1) None of the unexercised options listed had any value at fiscal year-end, because the exercise price of all the
options held by the listed officer was greater than or equal to $0.10 per share, which was the closing sales price
of our common stock as quoted on the OTCBB on December 31, 2001.

Employment Agreement

During June 2001, we entered into an employment agreement with S. Steven Carl. The employment
agreement has an initial term through June 15, 2002, and is subject to automatic renewal for successive one-year
terms unless either party requests to renegotiate or terminates the agreement by giving the other party at least six
months' written notice. .

Mr. Carl's employment agreement provides for him to serve as our President and Chief Executive Officer.
The employment agreement provides for Mr. Carl to receive a base salary of $145,000. However, in the event the
agreement is automatically renewed, the base salary shall not increase without approval by our board of directors.
Mr. Carl is also entitled to receive annual bonuses, payable in cash or with shares of our common stock, equal to
7.5% our annual EBITDA before giving effect to any extraordinary accounting events or accounting impacts from
discontinued operations. Mr. Carl received a bonus of $25,000 during fiscal 2001. The value of bonuses paid in
common stock shall be based on the closing bid price of our common stock on the last trading day of the relevant
year to which the bonus relates. Our board of directors may also award Mr. Carl such other bonuses and increases in
base salary as warranted from time to time.

In addition, the employment agreement requires us to

e provide Mr. Carl with a monthly car allowance of $500 or an automobile suitable for business use;

e reimburse Mr. Carl for all travel, entertainment, and other ordinary and necessary expenses incurred in
connection with our business and his duties under the employment agreements; and

e  provide such other fringe benefits that we make generally available to our other senior executives.

The employment agreement may be terminated by reason of resignation, death, disability, or as a result of
termination of employment "for cause," as defined in the agreement. In the event of a termination of the agreement
or if the agreement expires without being renewed or extended, Mr. Carl will resign as a director of our company
effective on the date of termination or expiration.

The employment agreement also prohibits Mr. Carl from

e competing with us for a period of 18 months following the termination of his employment with our
company;

e taking certain actions intended to solicit other persons to terminate their business relationship with us
or to terminate his or her employment relationship with us; and

¢ making unauthorized use or disclosure of our trade secrets or other confidential information.




Performance Equity Plan -

During 1996, we adopted the Performance Equity Plan to enable our company to offer to our key
employees, officers, directors, and consultants an opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in our company and to
link their interests and efforts to the long-term interests of our stockholders. Our stockholders approved the plan in
July 1996. The plan provides for the granting of awards to employees, officers, directors, and consultants eligible to
receive awards under the plan. These awards may include stock options, restricted stock, stock appreciation rights,
deferred stock, stock reload options, and other stock based awards. A total of 1,000,000 shares of common stock
may be issued under the plan. As of May 24, 2002, 80,000 shares of our common stock had been issued upon direct
grant under the plan or upon exercise of options granted under the plan, and there were outstanding options to
acquire 865,000 shares of our common stock. As of May 24, 2002, 55,000 shares remained available for issuance
under the plan. The plan will remain in effect until no further grants can be made and no awards remain
outstanding, however, incentive stock options may only be made through May 2006. During 2002, our board of
directors amended the plan to increase the number of shares that may be issued under the plan to 4,000,000, subject
to stockholder approval at the meeting. See "Proposal to Approve the Amendment to the Performance Equity Plan."

Awards may be made or granted only to persons who at the time of grant are key employees, officers,
directors, and consultants who are deemed to have rendered or to be able to render significant services to our
company, and who are deemed to have contributed or to have the potential to contribute to the success of our
company. Options that are incentive stock options may only be granted to employees of our company. To the
extent that granted options are incentive stock options, the terms and conditions of those options must be consistent
with the qualification requirements set forth in the Internal Revenue Code.

" The plan is administered by our board of directors, except that our board of directors may delegate its
power to administer the plan to a committee appointed by our board of directors. Our board of directors or the
committee will have the authority to administer all matters governing the plan, including the persons eligible to
receive awards, the terms and conditions of grants of awards, the specified performance goals or other criteria that
need to be attained for the vesting of awards, and the substitution of any awards.

The exercise prices, expiration dates, maximum number of shares purchasable, and the other provisions of
the options will be established at the time of grant. The exercise prices of options may not be less than 100% (110%
if the option is granted to a stockholder who, at the time of grant, owns common stock possessing more than 10% of
the combined voting power of all class of stock of our company) of the fair market value of our cémmon stock on
the date of grant. Options may be granted for terms determined by the commitfee and become exercisable in whole
or in one or more installments at such time as may be determined upon grant of the options, and may be waived at
any time by the committee.

Under the plan, our board of directors or the committee also may award shares of restricted stock or other
stock-based awards either alone or in addition to other awards granted under the plan. The committee will
determine the eligible persons, the number of shares to be awarded, the price (if any) to be paid by the holder, and
all other terms and conditions of such awards.

Upon a merger or other recapitalization of our company, such substitution or adjustment will be made in
the aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance under the plan, in the number, terms of, and exercise price of
shares subject to outstanding awards, as may be determined to be appropriate by the committee in order to prevent
dilution or enlargement of rights. Upon a change of control of our company that is not authorized by our board of
directors, the vesting periods of all awards granted and outstanding under the plan will accelerate and become fully
vested and immediately exercisable.

1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan

During October 1993, we adopted, and our stockholders approved, the 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan to
advance the interests of our company by encouraging and enabling key employees to acquire a financial interest in
our company and to link their interests and efforts to the long-term interests of our stockholders. The plan provides
for the granting of stock options to key employees of our company. A total of 350,000 shares of common stock may
be issued under the plan. As of May 24, 2002, 10,000 shares of our common stock had been issued upon exercise of




options granted under the plan, and there were outstanding options to acquire 242,500 shares of our common stock
under the plan. As of May 24, 2002, 97,500 shares remained available for issuance under the plan.

- Options may be granted only to persons who at the time of grant are key employees of our company. The
plan is administered and interpreted by the compensation committee of our board of directors. The -committee
determines the individuals to whom, and the time or times at which, options are granted, the number of shares
subject to each option, the duration, exercise price, vesting, and other terms and conditions of options granted.

In no event will the exercise price of an option be less than the fair market value of our common stock on
the date of grant. Options may be granted for terms of up to but not exceeding ten years from the date of grant.

In the event of any recapitalization of our company, the committee will adjust the number of shares of stock
available for options, as well as the shares and exercise prices subject to any options. The plan will terminate on the
earliest of (a) the date when all shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the plan have been acquired
through exercise of options granted under the plan; (b) October 2003; or (c) such earlier date as our board of
directors may determine.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following tabley' sets forth information with respect to our common stock, as of December 31, 2001, that
may be issued upon the exercise of stock options, warrants, and rights under our Performance Equity Plan, our 1993
Incentive Stock Option Plan, and other individual compensation arrangements.

©
‘ Number of Securities
(a) Remaining Available for
Number of Securities (b) Future Issuance Under
to be Issued Upon Weighted Average Equity Compensation
Exercise of Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected in
Plan Category . Warrants, and Rights Warrants, and Rights Column (a))
Equity Compensation
Plans Approved by
Stockholders.................. . 1,148,700 . $0.27 . 111,300
Equity Compensation
Plans Not Approved :
by Stockholders(1)......... 917,500 - $1.36 -
Total...oceeiiiiceiecnee 2,066,200 - 111,300

(1) In connection with services rendered to our company, we have issued warrants and options to purchase 917,500
shares of our common stock. Each warrant or option entitles the holder to purchase at any time before the
expiration of the warrant or option, a specified number of shares of common stock at a certain exercise price.
The warrants and options listed will expire on or before December 1, 2005 and have exercise prices ranging
from $0.22 to $2.00.




REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of our company has appointed an audit committee, currently consisting of three
directors as of the date of this proxy statement. All of the members of the committee are "independent” of our
company and management, as that term is defined in the NASD's listing standards. -

The primary responsibility of the committee is to oversee our company's financial reporting process on
behalf of the Board of Directors. Management has the primary responsibility for the financial statements and the
reporting process, including the systems of internal controls. The independent auditors are responsible for auditing
our financial statements and expressing an opinion on the conformity of those audited financial statements with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the committee reviewed and discussed the audited financial
statements with management and the independent auditors. The committee discussed with the independent auditors
the matters required to be discussed by Statement of Auditing Standards No. 61. This included a discussion of the
auditors' judgments as to the guality, not just the acceptability, of our accounting principles and such other matters
as are required to be discussed with the committee under generally accepted auditing standards. In addition, the
committee received from the independent auditors written disclosures and the letter required by Independence
Standards Board Standard No. 1, Independence Discussions with Audit Committees. The committee also discussed
with the independent auditors the auditors' independence from management and our company, including the matters
covered by the written disclosures and letter provided by the independent auditors. ‘ .

The committee discussed with our independent auditors the overall scope and plans for the audits. The
committee meets with the independent auditors, with and without management present, to discuss the results of their
examinations, their evaluation of our company, the internal controls, and the overall quahty of the financial
reporting. The committee held four meetings during fiscal year 2001.

‘Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the committee recommended to the Board of
Directors, and the Board approved, that the audited financial statements be included in the Annual Report on Form
10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2001 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
committee and the Board of Directors also have recommended, subject to stockholder approval, the selection of the
company's independent auditors. See "Ratification of Appointment of Independent Auditors.”

The Board of Directors has adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee.

Dated: May 31,2002 John B. Furman
R. John Armstrong
Robert Affholder

SECTION 16(A) BENEFiCIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors, officers, and persons who own more than 10% of
a registered class of our equity securities to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. Directors, officers, and greater than 10% stockholders are required by SEC regulations
to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. Based solely upon our review of the copies of such
forms that we received during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, and written representations that no other
reports were required; we believe that each person who at any time during such fiscal year was a director, officer, or
beneficial owner of more than 10% of our common stock complied with all Section 16(a) filing requirements during
such fiscal year.




SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS,
DIRECTORS, AND OFFICERS

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the shares of our outstanding common stock
beneficially owned as of June 14, 2002 by (i) each director; (ii) the executive officer set forth in the Summary
Compensation Table under the section entitled "Executive Compensation;" (iii) all of our directors and executive
officers as a group; and (iv) each other person who is known by us to beneﬁmally own or to exercise voting or
dispositive control over more than 5% of our common stock. :

Name(1) 7 Number of Shares(Z) Percent(2)

Directors and Executive Officers - ‘

S. Steven Carl.....cocovviivcicrenire e 880,209(3) 7.2%
R. John Armstrong. ........c...... e 182,318 . . 1.5%
Robert Aftholder........c.occooviiiiicniiniiiiecen 99,613 o *.
John B. Furman.........ccoocriiviininnine. : - --
Directors and executive officers as a group . :

{6 PEISONS).c.cvveiireeriiiriitierie et 1,834,340(4) 14.6%
Non-management 5% Stockholders : :
Lance Laifer...ccccoooviviiierieiri il : 3,375,516(5) o 28.3%
Norman H. Pessin .......cocovvverieieineciniiinen, 985,000(6) . 8.3%
Shelby Carl..........oconeeee s 638,470(7) : 5.3%

*  Less than 1%

(1) Except as indicated, and subject to community property laws when- applicable, each officer, director, and 5%
stockholder named in the table above has sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of
common stock shown as beneficially owned by them. Except as otherwise indicated, each director, officer, or
5% stockholder may be reached through our offices at 2215 West Melinda Lane, ‘Suite A, Phoenix, Arizona
85027.

(2) The percentages shown are calcilated based upon 11,944,872 shares of common stock outstanding on June 14,
2002. The numbers and percentages shown include the shares of common stock actually owned as of June 14,
2002 and the shares of common stock that the person or group had the right to acquire within 60 days of
June 14, 2002. In calculating the percentage of ownership, all shares of common stock that the identified
person or group had the right to acquire within 60 days of June 14, 2002 upon the exercise of options and
warrants are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of the shares of common
stock owned by such person or group, but are not deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the
percentage of the shares of common stock owned by any other person.

(3) Includes 362,500 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options.

(4) Includes 639,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options and warrants.

(5) Hilltop Partners, L.P., Laifer Capital Management, Inc., and Lance Laifer are affiliates with respect to each
other. Hilltop beneficially owns 1,664,616 shares of our common stock, and Laifer Capital Management, Inc.
beneficially owns 3,375,516 shares of our common stock in its capacity as investment advisor to various
investment entities including Hilltop. Mr. Laifer is the president, sole director, and principal stockholder of
Laifer Capital Management, Inc., and is deemed to have the same beneficial ownership as Laifer Capital
Management, Inc. Mr. Laifer has sole voting and investment power with respect to 2,185,316 shares of
common stock and shares investment power with respect to 1,190,200 shares of common stock. The address for
Hilltop Partners, Laifer Capital Management, and Lance Laifer are c/o Laifer Capital Management, Inc. is 450
Seventh Avenue, Suite 1604, New York, New York 10123. The information is based solely upon a Schedule
13D/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as of April 11, 2001.

(6) Norman H. Pessin is a principal of Neuberger & Berman, LLC, a registered broker/dealer and registered
investment advisor. Mr. Pessin has sole voting and dispositive power with respect to all shares of our common
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stock held by him. The address for Mr. Pessin is ¢/0 Neuberger & Berman, LLC, 605 Third Avenue, New
York, NY 10138.
(7) Includes 50,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options and warrants.

. PROPOSAL TO APPROVE THE AMENDMENT TO
THE PERFORMANCE EQUITY PLAN

Our board of directors has approved a proposal to amend our Performance Equity Plan, subject to approval
by our stockholders. See "Executive Compensation —~ Performance Equity Plan" for a description of the material
terms of the plan. - :

The plan is intended to attract, retain, and motivate directors, employees, and consultants who provide
valuable services to our company by providing them with the opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in our
company and to link their interests and efforts to the long-term interests of our stockholders. Currently, the plan
authorizes the issuance of 1,000,000 shares of common stock. As of May 24, 2002, we had issued an aggregate of
80,000 shares of common stock upon direct grant under the plan or upon exercise of options granted pursuant to the
plan, there were outstanding options to acquire 865,000 shares of common stock, and an additional 55,000 shares
remained available for grant under thé plan. During 2002, our board of directors amended the plan to increase the
number of shares that may be issued under the plan to 4,000,000 shares of common stock. If the proposal to amend
the plan is approved by the stockholders at the meeting, as of May 24, 2002, the number of shares available for grant
under the plan would increase to 3,055,000. Our board of directors has determined that an increase is necessary to
provide a sufficient number of shares to enable our company to continue to attract, retain, and motivate our
directors, employees, and consultants by making additional shares available for grant under the plan. Our board of
directors believes it is in the best interests of our company to amend the plan. Accordingly, our board of directors
recommends a vote "FOR" the proposal to amend the plan.

Reasons for and 4E‘ffect of the Proposed Amendment

Our board of directors believes that the approval of the proposed amendment to the plan is necessary to
achieve the purposes of the plan and to promote the welfare of our company and our stockholders generally. As
described above, if the proposal is not approved by our stockholders, we will only have 55,000 shares available for
grant under the plan. We do not believe that amount of shares will be sufficient for us to grant equity compensation
to our officers, directors, and key employees for the next few fiscal years. Our board of directors also believes that
the proposed amendment to the plan will aid our company in attracting and retaining officers and key employees and
motivating such persons to exert their best efforts on behalf of our company. In addition, we expect that the
proposed amendment will further strengthen the identity of interests of the officers and key employees with that of
our stockholders.

Ratification by Stockholders of the Amendment to the Performance Equity Plan

Approval of the amendment to the plan will require the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the
outstanding shares of our common stock present in person or by proxy at the meeting. In the event that the
amendment to the plan is not approved by our stockholders, the plan will remain in effect as previously adopted.

11




RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Our board of directors has appointed McGladrey & Pullen LLP, independent public accountants, to audit
our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2002 and recommends that the
stockholders vote in favor of the ratification of such appointment. In the event of a negative vote on such
ratification, our board of directors will reconsider its selection. We anticipate that representatives of McGladrey &
Pullen LLP will be present at the meeting. These representatives will have the opportumty to make a statement if
they desire and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Aggregate fees billed to our company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 by our prmcxpal
accounting firm, McGladrey & Pullen LLP, are as follows:

AUGIE FEES ...vviiiiiiiii ittt ettt sttt e et e et st te e st et e stee e e s e sanre e s eabbeesesasaesens $ 25,000

Financial Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees.........cc.eoveuene. 3 -
ALLOTNET FEES ..vvivieiiiicieeec ettt ettt e e e st ba e s et e e s s e sabraneeeeesenaens $ 6,000

The members of our audit committee believe that the non-audit services provided by McGladrey & Pullen
LLP, referenced above in "All Other Fees," are compatible with mamtammg our principal accounting firm's
independence. ‘

DEADLINE FOR RECEIPT OF STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Stockholder proposals that are intended to be presented by such stockholders at our annual meeting of
stockholders to be held during calendar year 2003 must be received by us no later than February 18, 2002, in order
to be included in the proxy statement and form of proxy relating to such meeting. Pursuant to Rule 14a-4 under the
Exchange Act, we intend to retain discretionary authority to vote proxies with respect to stockholder proposals for
which the proponent does not seek to have us include the proposed matter in the proxy statement for the annual
meeting to be held during calendar year 2003, except in circumstances where (a) we receive notice of the proposed
matter no later than May 4, 2002; and (b) the proponent complies with the other requlrements set forth in
Rule 14a—

OTHER MATTERS

We know of no other matters to be submitted to the meeting. If any other matters properly come before the
meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed proxy card to vote the shares they represent as our
board of directors may recommend.

Dated: June 17,2002
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Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Portions of this report describe historical information, such as the 2000 and 2001 operating results, and we
believe the descriptions to be accurate. In contrast to describing the past, some statements in this report indicate that we
believe that events or financial results are likely to occur in the future. These statements typically use words or phrases
like "believe,” "expects,” "anticipates,” "estimates,” "will continue” and similar expressions. Statements using those
words or similar expressions are intended to identify "forward-looking statements” as that term is used in Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Forward-
looking statements include projections of operating results for 2002 and beyond, ezther concerning a specific segment of
our busiriess, or concerning our company as a whole.

o "o "o,

Actual results, however, may be materially different from the results projected in the forward-looking
statements, due to a variety of risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include those set forth in Item 1,
“"Description of Business," in Item 6, "Management's Discussion and Analysis," and elsewhere in this report.

The forward-looking statements in this report are current only as of the date this report is filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. After the‘ﬁli_ng of this report, our expectations and beliefs may change, and we
may come to believe that certain forward-looking statements in this report are no longer accurate. We do not have an
obligation to correct or revise any forward looking statements in this report, even if we believe the forward looking
statements are no longer true. ‘ '




PARTI
ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS -
Overview
Our Company

We provide chemical cleaning services for water pipe systems, waste water systems, cooling towers and HVAC
systems, tanks and boilers, and other water-based and industrial chemical process systems using our proprietary line of
specialty chemical products and chemical cleaning processes. We use our patented and proprietary chemical products
and chemical cleaning processes to remove scale and corrosion from pipeline systems, water systems, and surfaces.
Chemical cleaning service markets are the main source of our revenue, which include municipal, industrial,
governmental, commercial, and other customers serviced directly and through strategic marketing alliances. Our largest
customer is currently the U.S. Navy. We provide chemical cleaning services for pipe systems and tanks on U.S. Navy
and Coast Guard vessels.

Over time most water and water-based systems, such as potable water delivery systems, fire sprinkler systems,
waste systems, process water systems, holding tanks, and water wells develop internal surface scale, corrosion, and
tuberculation. These corrosive substances reduce the diameter through which water and waste can travel through the
pipes, causing a less efficient or non-functioning system. Our cleamng methodologies remove the corrosion and restore
the efficiency and flow characteristics of the syster. :

We use patented and other proprietary chemical products and processes in our cleaning services. Our chemical
formulation, when circulated through an obstructed pipe system, dissolves and removes scale and corrosion build-up in
solution until flushed from the system. The system may then be treated with other chemical products that retard corrosion
or suppress the environment that supports biological growth. Most of the chemicals that we use are non-fuming, non-
abrasive, and non-flammable. Most of our chemical products are certified biodegradable by Scientific Certification
Systems.

Our chemical products and chemical cleaning processes were developed to provide a more cost effective and
efficient means of cleaning pipe-systems in contrast to replacement, mechanical scraping, pigging, hydro blasting, or
other pipe cleaning methods. Additionally, our chemical products and chemical cleaning processes are safer than many
other chemical cleaning methods. Our chemical products include the follo'wing:

¢ Pipe-Klean and Well-Klean, which remove encrustation from water pumping and distribution systems;

¢ Compound 360, Compound 400, Corr-Hib and Slug which clean and maintain cooling and other water
treatment systems; and

. Line-Out which cleans drip irrigation systems and removes salt from soil surfaces.

We also sell pnvate label chemical products utilizing our patented and proprletary formulations or products
complementary to our formulations for key customers.

Our company was incorporated in Arizona in December 1986 and re-incorporated in Delaware in May 1994,
Our executive offices are located at 2215 West Mehnda Lane, Suite A, in Phoenix, Arizona and our telephone number is
(623) 492-0336. Our service operations, warehouse, and manufacturing facility for some of our chemical products are
located at 1420 Columbus Avenue, Portsmouth, Virginia.

Products and Services

Water has many uses and is therefore transported through and an integral component of many systems in use
today. These systems range from wells and potable waterlines to fire protection systems heating and air-conditioning
units, cooling towers, water tanks, industrial production processes, waste water systems, collection-holding-transfer
(CHT) systems, waste tanks, and landfill drainage systems. Water is a chemically active substance and any surface that is
regularly exposed to water is subject to corrosion. Since water is rarely pure, water exposed surfaces are also subject




to scaling from dissolved minerals or biological corrosion from water-born microbes. Scaling or corrosion will
eventually lead to the plugging or.fouling of the surface, pipe, pump, air condition system, or other water exposed
surface. .

The generally accepted cleaning methods for various water systems include replacement, mechanical scraping,
hydro blasting, pigging, and chemical cleaning. We offer a method of chemical cleaning which we believe is a significant
improvement over most other cleaning methods due to increased efficiency, safety, and effectiveness with less
environmental impact.

"Pipe-Klean and Well-Klean are used to remove scale and corrosion from drinking water systems and water
wells. These products have been tested and certified by NSF International and Underwriters Laboratories, or UL, for use
as well cleaning and pipe cleaning aids in drinking water systems. NSF Standards were developed under authority of the
federal Environmental Protection Agency to establish minimum requirements for the control of potential adverse human
health effects from products used in drinking water systems.

Pipe Cleaning Division

Our company provides pipe cleaning and other corrosion removal and control services for industries such as
marine, fire protection, industrial, municipal, and others. During fiscal 2001, total cheimical pipe cleaning revenue
increased 13% to $4,381,089 from $3,862,563 during fiscal 2000. ‘

Marine Services

Our marine applications focus on the cleaning of water and waste water pipe systems on ships including CHT,
tank, fire main, and countermeasure washdown systems. For example, the vacuum waste systems aboard most marine
vessels develop a scale in the pipe interiors that requires cleaning dpproximately once every 12-18 months. The principal
custorners of the pipe cleaning division are the United States Coast Guard and the United States Navy. We have a five-
year agreement with the United States Navy-Supervisor of Shipbuilding, or SupShip, office in Portsmouth, Virginia,
which expires during September 2002. Under this agreement, we clean pipe systems on board ships based in the Norfolk
area for indefinite quantities of chemical cleaning services at fixed prices. Other SupShip offices of the Atlantic and
Pacific Fleets and the maintenance office of the United States Coast Guard use the Portsmouth CHT contract. We
cleaned piping systems on board 84 United States vessels during fiscal 1999, 76 United States vessels during fiscal 2000,
and 73 vessels during fiscal 2001. SupShip has issued a notice of contemplated procurement for similar CHT chemical
cleaning services in 2002. '

In order to meet the requirements of the Portsmouth CHT contract, and to serve the East Coast market, we have
located an office in Portsmouth, Virginia. We also opened an office in San Diego, California to expand our ability to
offer pipe-cleaning services to the Pacific Fleet, Western United States Coast Guard, and other west coast customers and
have deployed cleaning units for service in Puget Sound, Hawaii, Japan, and Egypt.

Fire Protection

We patented our proprietary process method for chemically cleaning fire protection systems in 2000. Since
then, we have chemically cleaned multiple fire protection systems for several industries and customers. We believe that
our company has a significant advantage in securing fire protection system chemical cleaning work because we have
patents that cover the process of chemically cleaning and passivating a fire protection system.

The fire protection industry is in the beginning stages of learning how to diagnose and treat the problem of
microbiologically influenced corrosion, or MIC, in fire sprinkler systems. Sprinkler systems across the United States and
abroad have been found to have severe internal corrosion resulting from MIC and are not achieving required operational
levels. As a result of increased awareness of MIC by the fire protection industry, the American and National Fire
Sprinkler Associations have recognized our method for cleaning and passivating fire protection systems. We continue to
pursue certification by Factory Mutual and IRI-Hartford Steam Boiler, two of the major insurers of fire protection
systems in order to more aggressively market our services to this area of the water pipe system market.




The market for fire protection system pipe cleaning could grow rapidly if insurance companies or governmental
regulation were to require building owners to maintain properly functioning fire protection systems inside their buildings.
We continue to consult with members of the industry on the development of fire protection system operational
maintenance standards. In addition to fire protection system performance problems, MIC causes minute leaks in water
pipes, which results in damage to the building structure, equipment, and business inventory contents. To avoid
operational problems and water damage, we offer fire protection systém assessment services which include:

e internal fire system pipe inspection and video;
s water content analysis;
s  scale content analysis; and

e recommended remediation method.
Potable Water

Underground potable waterlines represent another market where we offer our patented water pipe system
cleaning services. We have numerous product and method patents covering the process of chemically cleaning potable
water distribution systems. In addition, our chemical products have been tested and certified by the NSF for use as water
well cleaning and pipe cleaning aids in drinking water systems. NSF standards were developed under the authority of the
EPA to establish minimum requirements for the control of potential adverse human health effects from products used in
drinking water systems. Many states have enacted these and similar standards.

Over time, potable water lines develop chemical and biological corrosion, a process known as tuberculation.
Tuberculation is the most common problem found in potable water lines, and without proper cleaning, the useful diameter
of the pipe will become severely restricted. It is not unusual to have a four-inch main line with only one inch of useful
diameter remaining. Tuberculation may also cause colored water, bad odors, unpleasant taste, and increased chemical
treatment and pumping costs.

Public and private water infrastructure capital and maintenance funding may serve to create large markets for
system rehabilitation in the future. The practical need for underground water distribution system cleaning and passivation
is growing world-wide, and the United States Congress is beginning to budget and fund water distribution rehabilitation
programs administered through the EPA. Our core process patents directly address this practical need with a more
efficient, more economical, and less intrusive method of remediation than traditional methods,

Specialty Cleaning

Tn industrial process plants, scale and tuberculation greatly reduce heat exchange, condensing, and liquid flow
capacities in a variety of systems. In water treatment plants, chemical feed lines become internally clogged to the point
where they do not function properly. In fabric manufacturing plants, process pipe systems develop chemical scale
deposits. We currently provide chemical cleaning services to several industrial companies and municipalities in areas
such as systems in fiber plants, waste water systems, and other types of systems.

Marine Tank Cleaning Services

In February 2001, we acquired the operating assets of a Norfolk area marine tank cleaning company to add to
our marine and land based water and waste water system cleaning services. We provide marine tank cleaning services to
United States Navy and Coast Guard vessels through our agreements with private shipyards and ship repair companies,
and through a subcontract under a SupShip tank and bilge cleaning agreement renewable annually to 2005. We clean
fuel, oil, bilge, and CHT tanks. Total tank cleaning revenue during fiscal 2001 was $1,335,795, our first year of offering
these services. '

Industrial Chemicals Division

Our industrial chemicals division manufactures and sells specialty chemical products using our proprietary and
patented formulas for applications in the removal of salt, scale, and corrosion and in the maintenance of process water
systems. These products are currently Well-Klean, Line Out, and several process water products currently manufactured




under private label for DuPont. Industrial chemical sales decreased 38% to $249,680 during fiscal 2001, compared with
$404,172 during fiscal 2000.

. Well-Klean removes scale and corrosion in water wells. Over time, the well screen and many other well
components become clogged. When added to wells as directed, Well-Klean removes the harmful corrosion and corrosion
by-products from the well components and the surrounding aquifer to restore well pumping characteristics, ultimately
leading to improved well performance.

Line Out cleans drip irrigation systems and removes salt from soils in the root zone of turf grasses on golf
courses. Drip systems become clogged with scale over time and require regular maintenance in order to continue to
perform. The use of high salt content water by golf courses for irrigation has caused the need for a product to remove salt
from the turf root zone. Our Line Out product provides a superior method of cleaning while improving water
distribution. We manufacture Line Out as a private labeled product called Deliminate for golf courses in the United
States.

Chlor*Rid is a product developed from one of our core formulas to remove salt from surfaces, prior to the
application of high performance paints or coatings. During 1998, we sold a 50% interest in our patent covering this
application to Chlor*Rid International which became the sole owner of Chlor*Rid in 2002. Under the sales agreement,
we retain royalties on future sales for the life of the patent, which is approximately thirteen years.

We sell process water products primarily under the trade name Compound 360. These products de-scale and
maintain many types of process water systems, including cooling towers, heat exchangers, and condensers. During 1999,
we entered into agreements with DuPont whereby our company manufactures private labeled products for DuPont using
our formulas. In addition to realizing the gross profit from the manufacturing of the product, we receive royalties on the
sales of the defined product. We may also market our products to the same customers and can use Dupont's name in
certain marketing representatlons

Marketing and Distribution

We market our products and services through our marketing and sales staff, independent distributors, sales
representatives, and strategic partnerships and marketing agreements. Sales to the U.S. Navy under the Portsmouth CHT
contract were 45% of our consolidated sales during fiscal 2001 and 73% of consolidated sales during fiscal 2000. We
generate our revenue from relatively few customers and we expect the high concentration levels to decline through 2002.
Nonetheless, any material delay, cancellation, or reduction of orders from these customers could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial position.

Competition

Several small regional companies and certain larger customers compete with us for our marine business. Our
company -competes directly with Layne-Christensen, Inc. in the market for water well cleaning. Chemicals used in
cleaning water systems have generally been non-proprietary, readily available acids produced by such major chemical
companies as DuPont, Dow Chemical Company, Hill Brothers Chemical Company and Vista Chemical Company. These
companies are substantially larger and have far more extensive resources than we do. To the extent that we seek to sell
our water system pipeline rehabilitation products directly to end users, we may be perceived as competing with the
regional contractors to which we might also seek to market our pipe rehabilitation products and technology. While they
are not as large as the chemical producers, the contracting companies are still generally larger and more established in the
industry than our company. .

We anticipate that the companies with which we compete have the resources to develop, have developed, are
developing, or may develop and market products and services that directly compete with those of our company. Current
competitors or new market entrants could produce new or enhanced products or services with features that render our
company's products and services obsolete or less marketable. Our company's competitive success will depend on our
ability to promote and to adapt to technological changes and advances in the water systems treatment industry.




Our company competes principally on the basis of our superior methodology, ease of use, price, and
environmental impact. We also strive to secure strategic relationships with established companies. We have patent
protection for certain of our chemicals and processes and we are seeking to expand our patent protection by making new
applications with respect to our proprietary products and technologies in order to provide a diverse product and service
offering.

Manufacturing and Supplies

We formulate and package our industrial products at our plant in Portsmouth, Virginia. We generally do not
maintain long-term supply agreements with our suppliers and we purchase raw materials pursuant to purchase orders or
short-term contracts in the ordinary course of business. We believe that the raw materials and other supplies are available
from a variety of sources and that there are numerous companies available to formulate and package our products.

Patent and Trademark Protection
We rely on patent protection, including the following:

e aseries of United States patents for the use of our Pipe-Klean technology in the cleaning of potable water
distribution and fire protection systems;

e a United States patent on the mobile re-circulation units employed in the pipe cleaning process; and

e aseries of United States patents on the core chemical technology used for pipe cleaning and industrial
water applications.

We received a Notice of Allowance for our basic pipe-cleaning patents for the association of European countries and
applied for these patents throughout Europe during 1999 and 2000. Additionally, U.S. Patent applications for Methods
of Pipe Cleaning and improvements on the basic method were issued and received by us during 1999 and 2000, and a
new application was filed during 2001. h.e.r.c., Well-Klean, Pipe-Klean, and Line-out are registered trademarks of
HERC.

There can be no assurance that any patents applied for will be obtained. Moreover, there can be no assurance
that any of the patents will afford our company commercially significant protection of cur technology or that we will have
adequate resources to enforce our patents. We believe that our company has independently developed its proprietary
technologies and that these technologies do not infringe the proprietary rights of others. Although we have received no
claims of infringement, it is possible that infringement of existing or future patents or proprietary rights may occur.

In the event that our products or processes infringe patent or proprietary rights of others, we may be required to
modify our processes or obtain a license. We may not be able to obtain a license in a timely manner, or upon acceptable
terms and conditions. The failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, there can be
no assurance that we will have the financial or other resources necessary to defend a patent or a proprietary rights action.
Moreover, if any of our products or processes infringe on patents or proprietary rights of others, under certain
circumstances we could become liable for damages that could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations
and financial condition. '

Our company relies on proprietary know-how and confidential information and employs various methods to
protect the processes, concepts, ideas, and documentation associated with our technology. However, such methods may
not afford complete protection, and others may independently develop such processes, concepts, ideas, and
documentation. Although we require all of our employees to sign confidentiality agreements, we may not be able to
protect our trade secrets, and other companies may acquire information that we consider to be proprietary. Moreover,
other companies may independently develop know-how comparable to or superior to that of our company.

Government Regulation

Water pollution is a major focus of federal, state, and local environmental protection laws and regutations. The
discharge from water systems treatment is subject to these laws and regulations. The water system treatment industry and
our operations are subject to extensive and significant regulation by federal, state, and local governmental authorities.




Some of such regulation is extensive and may from time to time have a significant impact on our operations. NSF has
indicated that Pipe-Klean and Well-Klean comply with the standards for chemicals that can be used in cleaning drinking
water systems. In addition, many of our products are certified as-biodegradable by Scientific Certification Systems.
Products are biodegradable if they can be broken down into carbon dioxide, water, and minerals without harmful effects
to the environment.

Some of our products require the use of a chemical that is classified under applicable laws as a corrosive
chemical and substance, and our use of these chemicals and substances may subject us to environmental liability. The
use of certain chemicals contained in our products is subject to frequently changing federal, state, and local laws and
substantial regulation under these laws by governmental agencies, including the EPA, the Occupational Health and Safety
Administration, various state agencies, and county and local authorities acting in conjunction with federal and state
authorities. Among other matters, these regulatory bodies impose requirements

s to control air, soil and water pollution;
e . to protect against occupational exposure to such chemicals, including health and safety risks; and.

e to require notification of the storage, use, and release of certain corrosive chemicals and substances.

We have obtained certification for our Pipe-Klean, Pipe-Klean Preblend, Acid Klean, and Pipe-Klean
Neutralizer products as "pipe cleaning aids” under ANSI/NSF Standard 60 from NSF for use in potable water distribution
systems. Additionally, we have obtained ANSI/NSF Standard 60 certification for our Well-Klean IT Concentrate, Acid
Klean, and Well-Klean Preblend products as "well cleaning aids" for potable water wells.

We believe that we are in substantial compliance with all material federal, state, and local laws and regulations
governing our business operations and that we have obtained all material licenses, authorizations, approvals, orders,
certificates, and permits required for the operation of our business. We cannot provide assurance that in the future we
will be able to comply with current or future government regulations in every jurisdiction in which we will conduct our
business operations without substantial sanctions, including restrictions on our business operations, monetary liability,
and criminal sanctions, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Advertising relating to. our products is subject to the review of the Federal Trade Commission and state
agencies, pursuant to their general authority to monitor and prevent unfair or deceptive trade practices, In addition, the
Consumer Products Safety Commission regulates the labeling of.our products.

Research and Development

We estimate that we incurred approximately $12,000 during fiscal 2001 and $24,000 during fiscal 2000 on
research and development activities related to improving our cleaning methodologies.

Employees

As of March 1, 2002, we had 68 employees. Three of our employees are officers, 53 are engaged in field
operations and production, nine are in administration, and three are in marketing and sales. None of our employees are
represented by labor unions or covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We believe that our relationship with our
employees is good. - ’ ‘

Seasonality

Sales of specialty chemical products and certain chemical cleaning services are seasonal in those parts of the
United States in the Snow Belt. Seasonal sales can result in uneven cash flow for our company, which may require us to
obtain and maintain short-term financing arrangements. Our inability to obtain financing could have a material adverse
effect on our operations and financial condition.




SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The following factors, in addition to those discussed elsewhere in this report, should-be carefully considered in
evaluating our business.

We depend on the United States Navy, which represented approximately 45% of our revenue during fiscal 2001.

During the most recent fiscal year, the United States Navy accounted for 45% of our revenue. The loss of a
substantial portion or all of the business from this customer could result in a material adverse effect on our revenue and
results of operations. If the United States Navy cuts back or stops using our services, our sales staff may not be able to
replace this customer in a timely enough fashion for our company to continiie operations.

Our company may need financing in the future and does not have any committed sources of financing,

If our company is not profitable in the future for an extended period of time, it will require additional financing
to cover operating expenses. Also, any major capital expenditures might require capital from independent financing
sources. Our company does not have any accumulated retained earnings to fund cash flow deficits and significant capital
requirements. Other than our factoring arrangement, we do not have any specifically identified sources for future
financing requirements. '

Potential competition exists for customers in the marine business.

We do not believe that there are any substantial capital requirements for or other barriers to entry into the
chemical cleaning of pipe systems for the marine industry. Therefore, there is potential competition from entities that
elect to enter into this industry. As with any competition, there may be an adverse effect on market share and current
margins of our company.

The lack of patents may limit our ability to protect our current competitive position in the marine business.

Our company competes on the basis of our knowledge and experience of marine and other closed loop systems.
The chemical products used in the marine business are based mainly on proprietary chemistry, but this chemistry is not
patented or, we believe, patentable. Therefore, others may develop the same or similar chemistry through reverse
technology or by experimentation. If that happens, another entity could offer some of the same benefits as we do and
increase the competition in the marine pipe systems chemical cleaning market. Also, the lack of patents limits our ability
to market an absolutely unique product or service. Our company relies on trade secret and confidentiality protection with
respect to the chemicals and methodologies we use in our marine business. It is possible that these protections will not be
adequate to protect us from competitors.

The loss of any of our key executives or our failure to attract, integrate, inotivate, and retain additional key
employees could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our success depends to a large degree upon the skills of our senior management team and current key employees
and upon our ability to identify, hire, and retain additional sales, marketing, technical, and financial personnel. The loss
of any of our key executives or the failure to attract, integrate, motivate, and retain additional key employees could have a
material adverse effect on our business. We may be unable to retain our existing key personnel or attract and retain
additional key personnel. We depend particularly upon our Chief Executive Officer and President, S. Steven Carl. We
have an employment agreement with Mr. Carl, which runs through June 2003.

The effect of liability claims in excess of the insurance limits could affect the financial condition of our company.

We are engaged in a business that might expose our company to claims for personal or property injury. Suits
may result from personnel or bystanders who are injured on site, from damage to a pipe system being cleaned or from
other issues arising from the performance of our services. Our company maintains liability insurance in the aggregate
amount of $2,000,000 and $1,000,000 per occurrence. We also have an umbrella liability policy in the amount of
$5,000,000. A successful claim against our company that exceeds the insurance limits or that is not covered will have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition.




A substantial number of shares are eligible for future sale.

As of March 5, 2002, there were outstanding 11,904,872 shares of our common stock. Approximately
11,737,633 of these shares are freely tradable without restriction or further registration under the securities laws, unless
held by an "affiliate" of our company, as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the securities laws. Shares held by
affiliates of ouur company are subject to the resale limitations of Rule 144. The eligibility of these shares for resale may
have a depressive effect on the price of our common stock or may reduce the liquidity of our common stock.

The effect of outstanding options and warrants on market price and liquidity.

As of March 15, 2002, we had outstanding options and warrants to purchase 2,045,000 shares of our common
stock, and the exercise price of some of these options or warrants are less than the current market price of our common
stock. These options and warrants may have an adverse impact on the price and liquidity of our common stock in the
public market. Also, the issuance of these shares at prices below the market price will result in dilution to current
stockholders.

Directors, officers, and certain other stockholders own a significant portion of our stock.

Our directors and executive officers beneficially own a total of approximately 14% of the issued and outstanding
shares of our common stock, and one non-management stockholder beneficially owns approximately 28% of the issued
and outstanding shares of our common stock. As a result of this ownership, these persons have the power effectively to
control our company, including the election of directors, the determination of matters requiring stockholder approval, and
other matters pertaining to corporate governance. This concentration of ownership also may have the effect of delaying
or preventing a change in control of our company.

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

We lease our corporate headquarters in an approximately 3,000 square foot facility in Phoenix, Arizona. The
facility contains our executive offices. The lease expires in April 2002.

We lease approximately 10,000 square feet of office and warehouse space .in Portsmouth, Virginia and
approximately 3,000 square feet in National City, California. We believe that these facilities will be adequate for our
needs for the foreseeable future. ‘ ' '

ITEM3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in various legal proceedings arising out of our operations in the ordinary course of business.
We do not believe that such proceedings, even if determined adversely, will have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not applicable.




PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Qur common stock is quoted on the OTCBB under the symbol "HERC", and is listed on the Boston Stock
Exchange under the symbol "HER." The following table sets forth the high and low closing prices of our common stock
as quoted by OTCBB for the periods indicated. Such quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-
down, or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

High Low

2002:
- First Quarter (through March 15, 2002) .....cocoovvineieciecereieeieesseesresssesee s - $ 0.16 $ 0.09
2001: :
FAESt QUATTET .....tveereeisieicrie oo etete et eae e tes bt es bbb ben s eb s et ns s bt sane $ 0.38 $ 0.17
SECONA QUATTET.....eiviriirireieiine ettt st e st se ettt snest et essesessnassestenes 0.25 0.13
Third QUATTET .....ccvecieiieieiceeteee et eeteere st e eaecereeteeraesrtassreseesbesseestneaseestesnssasanas ‘ 0.25 0.09
FOUth QUATTET .....cviiieieiriie ettt ea et ece e raesr st st saesas e see st sneenaneve s 0.22 0.09
2000:
FATSt QUATTET .....cocveviviecrcte ettt ess st esses et es e ee sttt sssbr s st be et et beaebanas $ 050 - $ 027
Second Quarter........covoenveernennn et eh ettt es et e ea e rr e b e ea s s erebeshenas 0.50 0:30
Third QUATTET ......ccoverrerirrreerereriiernnns e oot ae ke et eeereas 0.50 0.34
FOUIth QUATTET.....cecieiiieieiiee ettt tee et e e eses s vsan b e e aes st se s esessesseebanis 0.42 0.16

As of March 15, 2002, there were approximately 130 record holders and appfoximately 950 beneficial owners
of our common stock. On March 15, 2002, the closing sales price of our common stock as quoted by OTCBB was $0.09.

Dividend Policy

For the foreseeable future, we intend to retain any future earnings, if any, to finance our operations and we do
not anticipate paying any cash dividends with respect to our common stock. Subject to the preferences that may be
applicable to any then-outstanding preferred stock, the holders of our common stock will be entitled to receive such
dividends, if any, as may be declared by our board of directors from time to time out of legally available funds. Payments
of any cash dividends in the future will depend on our financial condition, results of operations, and capital requirements
as well as other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors.

ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF. FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS :

Overview

We derive the majority of our revenue from two sources, cleaning piping systems on U.S. Navy and U.S. Coast
Guard vessels and cleaning bilge, fuel, oil and CHT tanks on ships. This subjects our company to certain business risks
that can cause volatility in our revenue stream and our gross margins. We are also subject to the deployment and
servicing schedules of the U.S. Navy as well as the available maintenance funds in the Navy budget. These factors can
cause revenue to change dramatically from one quarter to the next. Additionally, we are required by our Portsmouth
CHT contract to perform work on different classes of ships. Performing work on different classes of ships can cause our
gross margins to vary widely from one quarter to the next because we make higher gross margins on certain classes of
ships than we do on others. Moreover, we are often asked to perform work on ships outside of the state of Virginia.
When we perform work under the Portsmouth CHT contract outside of the state of Virginia, we incur certain
reimbursable travel costs that are included in both revenue and cost of goods sold. These reimbursable travel costs cause
gross margins to be lower than the margins that would have otherwise been recognized had the work been performed in
Virginia.
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Our five-year Portsmouth CHT contract with the U.S. Navy is due to expire in September 2002. This contract
has been responsible for the majority of our consolidated revenue for several years. Management is currently making
plans regarding the €xpiration of this contract and the anticipated re-solicitation by the U.S. Navy for these services. If
the new contract is not awarded to us, it could have a material impact on our revenue and results of operations.

Critical Accounting Policies

High-quality financial statements require rigorous application of high-quality accounting policies. The policies
discussed below are considered by management to be critical to an understanding of our financial statements because
their application places the most significant demands on managements’ judgment, with financial reporting results relying
on estimation about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. Specific risks for these critical accounting policies
are described in the following paragraphs. For all of these policies, management cautions that future events rarely
develop exactly as forecast, and the best estimates routinely require adjustment.

Revenue Recognition

For chemical product sales, we recognize revenue at the time products are shipped to customers. For most
service projects, we recognize revenue wher the services are completed. For fixed price contracts that are in excess of 3
months, we recognize revenue on the percentage of completion method, measured by the percentage of cost incurred to
date to estimated total cost for each contract. We use this method because management considers total cost to be the best
available measure of progress on these contracts.

Contract costs include all direct material, subcontract labor, and other costs related to contract performance,
such as indirect labor, supplies, tools, and repairs. Selling, general, and administrative costs are charged to expense as
incurred. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are
determined. Changes in job performance, job conditions, and estimated profitability, including those arising from
contract penalty provisions and final contract settlements may result in revisions to estimates of contract costs and profits
and are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined.

The current asset, “costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts” represents
revenue recognized in excess of amounts billed.. The current liability, “billings in excess of costs on uncompleted
contracts,” represents billings in excess of revenue recognized. '

Allowance for boitbzful Accounts and Deferred Tax Assets

Management analyzes accounts receivable to determine the ultimate collectibility of those accounts. If
information is available to management to make a determination that there exists a reasonable possibility that an account
might not be collectible, management creates a reserve for that account at the time of the determination and recognizes a
related expense. If.the account is later collected, the reserve and expense are reversed in the current accounting period.
Since management must use its best judgment as to which accounts will be collected, there exists the risk that some
accounts might not be collected and thus could have a negative impact on our liquidity and results of operations.

Deferred taxes are provided on a liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible
temporary differences and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary
differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when it is determined to be more likely than not that some portion or all of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax
laws and rates on the date of enactment.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We periodically evaluate the carrying value of long-lived assets and intangibles. We reviéw long-lived assets
and certain identifiable intangible assets to be held and used in operations for potential impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized if the sum of the expected long-term undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the long-
lived assets being evaluated. Future losses may be recorded if cash flows are less than expected.
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Accruals

Loss contingencies are recorded as liabilities when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the
amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. Disclosure is required when there is a reasonable possibility that the ultimate
loss will exceed the recorded provision. Contingent liabilities are often resolved over long time periods. Estimating
probable losses requires analysis of multiple forecasts that often depend on judgments about potential actions by third
parties such as regulators.

Other significant accounting policies, not involving the same level of measurement uncertainties as those
discussed above, are nevertheless important to a complete understanding of the financial statements. Also see Note 1,
Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, which discusses other accounting policies relevant
to our business.’ - ’ o

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared with Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2000

Sales for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 were $5,966,564 compared with $4,266,735 during fiscal
2000. Pipe cleaning services accounted for $4,381,089 in 2001, of which $2,670,958 was billed under the Portsmouth
CHT contract with the United States Navy. In 2000, pipe-cleaning services accounted for $3,862,563 of which
$3,120,898 was billed under the Portsmouth CHT contract. Tank cleaning services totaled $1,335,795 during fiscal
2001, our first year of offering these services. Industrial chemical sales were $249,680 during fiscal 2001 compared with
$404,172 during fiscal 2000.

Our sales mix during 2001 changed significantly from 2000. Although we continued to generate a large portion
of our revenue from the cleaning of pipe systems on ships, our entrance into the tank cleaning services market
significantly reduced the percentage of consolidated sales generated from pipe system cleaning pursuant to the
Portsmouth CHT contract with the U.S. Navy. Our continued efforts to diversify our revenue base to different customers
and markets in order to reduce our dependence on one large customer has had the effect of reducing the percentage of
consolidated sales generated from pipe system cleaning pursuant to the Portsmouth CHT contract with the U.S. Navy
from 73% in 2000 to 45% in 2001. We currently focus specific sales and marketing efforts in the areas of marine,
industrial and municipal pipe cleaning as well as in the areas of marine and land based tank cleaning. In the future, we
will continue our efforts to diversify our revenue sources and thereby our reliance on one large customer for a significant
portion of our revenue. Sales of pipe cleaning services increased 13% during fiscal 2001. Tank cleaning services were
offered for the first time during 2001. Sales of industrial chemicals decreased 38% during fiscal 2001.

Consolidated gross margins were 42% during fiscal 2001 compared with 47% during fiscal 2000. The decrease
in gross margin was primarily the result of our entrance into the tank cleaning market. Lower tank cleaning margins had
the effect of lowering consolidated gross margins.. We anticipate that future margins will fluctuate with changes in
revenue mix and other operational factors.

Gross profit increased to $2,503,316 during fiscal 2001 from $1,995,389 during fiscal 2000. The increase in
gross profit was the result of higher revenue offset by lower consolidated gross margins. Selling expenses decreased to
$291,509 during fiscal 2001 from $393,556 during fiscal 2000 while general and administrative expenses increased to
$2,365,632 during fiscal 2001 from $1,864,771 during fiscal 2000. The decrease in selling expenses was the result of
reductions in sales personnel and marketing in underperforming areas as well as a reduction in commission expenses.
The increase in general and administrative expenses is primarily attributable to our entrance into the tank cleaning
services market and the related expenses of starting, staffing and operating that division. Additionally, increases’in
management compensation, insurance and certain other expenses accounted for the balance of the increase.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, our operating loss was $153,825 compared to an operating loss of
$262.,938 for the same period in 2000. Net loss for fiscal 2001 was $163,607 compared to a net loss for fiscal 2000
of $256,884. _ '
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash was $75,759 at December. 31, 2001 and $302,392 at December 31, 2000 while working capital was
$397.,407 and $496,608 at those respective dates. The decreases in cash and working capital are a function of cash used
for equipment and patent expenditures, cash used in the pay down of debt and cash used in operating activities.

We have entered into a factoring agreement under which the factor purchases eligible accounts receivable and
advances to us 80% of the purchased amount, not to exceed $600,000. Either party may cancel the agreement within 30
days' notice to the other party. Interest payable by us is calculated as a fixed discount fee equal to 1.0% of the amount of
the receivable factored plus a variable discount fee computed on the amount advanced. Interest on the outstanding
balance accrues on the basis of actual days elapsed from the date of the advance until five days after collection of such
account. Our inventory, accounts receivable, contract rights, and other general intangibles secure the amounts factored
under the agreement. We are required to maintain tangible net worth of not less than $750,000 during the term of the
agreement. As of December 31, 2001, we had factored $416,976 of accounts receivable. Additionally, as of December
31, 2001, we had $2,570 in long-term debt.

We rely primarily on our internally generated operating cash flow and our factoring arrangement to fund our
operations and our business. We currently contract with a few major customers responsible for a large percentage of our
revenue and we expect the high concentration levels to continue through 2002. Thus, any material delay, cancellation or
reduction of orders from these customers could have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and operations.

The table below describes our contractual obli gations to make future payments under contracts such as debt and
lease agreements:

Contractual Payments Due by Fiscal Year

Obligations 2002 2003 2004
Long-Term Debt and Other Financing Arrangements $ 13,153 $ 1,338 $ --
Capital Lease Obligations 6,791 1,232 -
Operating Leases 78,160 50,431 3,700

On February 9, 2001, we acquired certain tank and boiler cleaning assets of Industrial Chemical Cleaning
Incorporated. In exchange, the company assumed the existing debt that was secured by the particular assets. The actual
amount of debt assumed was $61,539.

On February 9, 2001, we acquired a barge with a capacity of 19,500 barrels from Hampton Roads Barge Rental,
LLC. Inexchange, we assumed $88,978 of debt that was secured by the barge. During the second quarter, we sold the
barge for $135,000 and realized a gain of $52,378.

We currently contract with a few customers responsible for a large percentage of our revenue and we expect the
high concentration levels to continue through 2002. Thus, any material delay, cancellation, or reduction of orders from
these customers could have a material adverse effect on our operations.

While we believe that we will not need to raise additional capital because our current cash and revenue from
operations will be sufficient for the foreseeable future, we may, in the future, sell additional securities to raise capital.
Any such sale, if necessary, could substantially dilute the interest of our existing stockholders. We cannot provide any
assurance that we will be able to sell additional securities at terms acceptable to us. We may, in the future, make
acquisitions by utilizing debt financing. Any such acquisition and debt financing could have a material adverse impact on
our liquidity and results of operations.




ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reference is made to the financial statements, the notes thereto, and the reports thereon, commencing on page F-
1 of this report, which financial statements, notes, and report are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
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PART III e ' : .

ITEM 9. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS; COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION16(a) OF THE
EXCHANGE ACT. . .

The following table s_ets forth certain -information regarding each of our directors and executive officers. . ‘

Name ' Age " Position
S.Steven Carl.....cccccoovvvvineieriiieeeee s 44 Chairman-of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive
Officer and President
Michael H. Harader ...........ccoovvivetivnenninae - 34, Vice President of Finance, Chief Financial Officer
John A. Gulick ...t . 46 Vice Presidént, Corporate General Counsel
R. John ArmsStrong...........cccocvvvuvrreenccrninnneneas 58 Director ‘ ‘

Robert Affholder .............. s 66 Director

S. Steven Carl has served as-our Chairman of the Board of Directors since February 1996, and has served as
our Chief Executive Officer and as a director of our company since August 1995. Mr. Carl has served as our President
since May 1997 until the present, and also from August 1 995 until February 1996. Mr. Carl served as the President and
Chief Executive Officer of CCT Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of our company acquired in May 1995.

Michael H. Harader has served as our Vice President of Finance since J uly 1998 and as our Chief F1nanc1a1
Officer since October 1998. Prior to that, Mr. Harader served in various accounting capacities since joining our company
in January 1996. During April 1994 until January 1996, Mr Harader served as a Credit Manager at Isley's RV Service
Center, Inc. Mr. Harader is a certified public accountant. . . .

John A. Gulick IIT has served as our Vice President, Corporate General Counsel since Jannary 2000. Prior to
joining our company, Mr. Gulick was a self-employed attorney from January 1990 until December 1999, and served as
outside counsel to our company. Mr. Gulick is licensed-to practice law in Arizona and Texas, and is a.certified public
accountant. : SR e .

R. John Armstrong has been a Director of our company since January 1, 1999. Mr. Armstrongr served eleven
years in the U.S. Navy, with experience in ship design, construction and maintenance, with a four-year tour at a SupShip
(supervisor of shipbuilding office), serving in quality assurance, contracts, and planning departments in addition to
serving two years on the engineering faculty-at the Naval Academy. Following his resignation from the Navy, Mr.
Armstrong served as-a Project Manager and, ultimately, Executive Vice Presideiit'of a professional services company in
Washington DC, providing engineering and computer services to-a broad spectrum of clients..In 1986, Mr. Armstrong
became the Premdent of Seaward Marine Serv1ces Inc engaged in 1nternat10nal diving services.

Robert W. Affholder has been a’ Drrector of our company since October 1, 2000 Mr Affholder has been
Senior Executive Vice President of Insituform Technologies, Inc:, a public company, since 1996. Mr. Affholder was
previously, since 1995, Senior Vice President-Chief Operating Officer of North American Contracting Operations of
Insituform Technologies, Inc. Mr. Affholder was President of Insituform Mid-America, Inc. from 1987 until its
acquisition by Insituform Technologres Inc.in 1995, and was Vice Chairman of Insituform Mid- Amenca Inc. from 1993
to 1995.. ‘ : '

S

Board of Directors

Directors are elected to serve until the next annual meeting of our stockholders or until their successors are
qualified and elected. Officers serve at the discretion of our board of directors.

Outside directors receive an annual retainer in the amount of $15,000, payable as follows, (a) $1,500 semi-
annually on the first day of the second and fourth quarters following such election, (b) $1,000 for personal attendance at
quarterly meetings of our board of directors, and (c) the issuance of our common stock payable quarterly on the first day
of each quarter in an amount equivalent to $2,000 of market value measured on the close of trading of the last trading day
of the prior quarter. We reimburse expenses of our outside directors incurred in connection with service to our company.




Under the plan, the Board of Directors or the committee also may award shares of restricted stock or other
stock-based awards either alone or in addition to other awards granted under the plan. The committee will determine the
eligible persons, the number of shares to be awarded,-the price (if any) to be paid by the holder, and all other terms and
conditions of such awards.

Upon a merger or other recapitalization of our company, such substitution or adjustment will be made in the
aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance under the plan, in the number, terms of, and exercise price of shares
subject to outstanding awards, as may be determined to be appropriate by the committee in order to prevent dilution or
enlargement of rights. Upon a change of control of our company that is not authorized by our Board of Directors, the
vesting periods of all awards granted and outstanding under the plan will accelerate and become fully vested and
immediately exercisable. S

1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan

During October 1993, we adopted, and our stockholders approved, the 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan to
advance the interests of our company by encouraging and enabling key employees to acquire a financial interest in our
company and to link their interests and efforts to the long-term interests of our stockholders. The plan provides for the
granting of stock options to key employees of our company. A total of 350,000 shares of common stock may be issued
under the plan.” As of March 15, 2002, 10,000 shares of our common stock had been issued upon exercise of options
granted under the plan, and there were outstandrng options to acquire 242,500 shares of our common stock under the
plan. :

Options may be granted only to persons who at the time of grant are key employees of our company. The plan is
administered and interpreted by the compensation committee of the Board of Directors. The committee determines the
individuals to whom, and the time or times at which, options are granted, the number of shares subject to each option, the
duration, exercise pl‘lCC vesting, and other terms and conditions of eptions granted.

In no event will the exercise price of an option be less than the fair market value of our common stock on the
date of grant. Options may be granted for terms of up to but not exceeding ten years from the date of grant. -

In the event of any recapitalization of our company, the committee will adjust the number of shares of stock
available for options, as well as the shares and exercise prices subject to any options. The plan will terminate on the
earliest of (a) the date when all shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the plan have been acquired through
exercise of options granted under the plan, (b) October 2003, or (c) such earlier date as the Board of Drrectors may
determine. '

Options and Warrants

‘ In addition to the options under the 1993 Plan and the Performance Equity Plan, as of March 1 5,2002, we had
outstanding the following options and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 917,500 shares of our common stock:

e warrants to purchase 567,500 shares of common stock at exercises prices ranging from $0.22 to $2.00 per
share issued to consultants. These warrants are currently exercisable and expire on various dates through
-September 2005; and ,

e other options to purchase 350,000 shares of common stock at exercise prices ranging from $0:3§il to $1.75
per share issued to employees. These options are currently exercisable and expire on various dates through
December 2005.
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Option Grants

The following table provides information on stock options granted to Mr. Carl during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001. : :

OPTION GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

Individual Grants
Number of Percent of
Securities Total Options
Underlying Granted to Exercise
Options Employees in Price Expiration
Name Granted (#) Fiscal Year ($/Shy Date
S. Steven Carl.....ccovvcevevineicrininienceeee e 50,000(1) 10.4% $ 0.19 3/29/11

75,000(2) 15.6% $ 0.10 11/01/11

(1) All of the options vested and became exercisable on March 29, 2001.
(2) All of the options vested and became exercisable on November 1, 2001.

Year End Option Holdings

The following table provides information with respect to options held by Mr. Carl as of December 31, 2001.
Mr. Carl did not exercise options during fiscal 2001.

OPTIONS HELD AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001

Name ‘ 4 Exercisable(1) Unexercisable.
S.Steven Carl.......covviiciveeiieeeieeeeeeete e 362,500 --

(1) None of the unexercised options listed had any value at fiscal year-end, because the exercise prices of all options
held by Mr. Carl were equal to or greater than $0.10 per share, which was the closing sales price of our common
stock as quoted on the OTCBB on December 31, 2001.
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ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the shares of our common stock beneficially owned
as of March 1, 2002 by Mr. Carl, each of our directors, each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than
5% of our common stock, and all of our directors and officers as a group.

Shares

Beneficially
Name of Beneficial Owner Owned (1) Percent (2)
Directors and Executive Officers: -
S StEVEN ATl .ot ittt ettt et eans 880,209 (3) 7.2%
R. John Afmstrong ..........cccecvevcrieneninean SRRSO U U I U UTOTURIPSUROPRROTOIOt 162,318 " 14%
ROBErt ATTNOLACT ...ccvviiivii ettt et 79,613 *
All directors and executive officers as a group (5 persons) (4) .....ccoecveveeenn. 1,748,340 14.0%
5% Stockholders: , ‘
LanCe Laifer (5) ittt e et e ene et e e 3,375,516 28.4%
Norman H. Pessin (6) ....covvviriiiiieiie ettt e s e st sanee s 985,000 8.3%
SHhelby AL Carl (7) cvvveeeeiiieeeiireeee ettt et et e 638,470 5.3%

*  Less than 1%

(1) Except as indicated, and subject to community property laws when applicable, each officer and director named in the
table above has sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock shown as beneficially
owned by them. Except as otherwise indicated, each director, officer, or 5% stockholder may be reached through
our offices at 2215 West Melinda Lane, Suite A, Phoenix, Arizona 85027.

(2) The percentages shown are calculated based upon 11,904,872 shares of common stock outstanding on March 1,
2002. The numbers and percentages shown include the shares of common stock actually owned as of March 1, 2002
and the shares of common stock that the person or group had the right to acquire within 60 days of March 1, 2002.
In calculating the percentage of ownership, all shares of common stock that the identified person or group had the
right to acquire within 60 days of March 1, 2002 upon the exercise of options and warrants are deemed to be
outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of the shares of common stock owned by such person or
group, but are not deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of the shares of common
stock owned by any other person.

(3) Includes 362,500 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options.

(4) All directors and our executive officers as a group includes two additional executive officers who are not listed
individually in the table.

(5) The information is based solely upon a Schedule 13D/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
April 11, 2001. Hilltop Partners, L.P., Laifer Capital Management, Inc., and Lance Laifer are affiliates with respect
to each other. Hilltop beneficially owns 1,664,616 shares of our common stock, and Laifer Capital Management
beneficially owns 3,375,516 shares of our common stock in its capacity as investment advisor to various investment
entities including Hilltop. Mr. Laifer is the president, sole director, and principal stockholder of Laifer Capital
Management, Inc., and is deemed to have the same beneficial ownership as Laifer Capital Management, Inc. The
address for Hilltop Partners, Laifer Capital Management, and Lance Laifer are ¢/o Laifer Capital Management, Inc.,
450 Seventh Avenue, Suite 1604, New York, New York 10123.

(6) Norman H. Pessin is a principal of Neuberger & Berman, LLC, a registered broker/dealer and registered investment
advisor. Mr. Pessin has sole voting and dispositive power with respect to all shares of our common stock held by
him. The address for Mr. Pessin is ¢c/o Neuberger & Berman LLC, 605 Third Avenue, New York, NY 10158-3698.

(7) Includes 50,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock options and warrants.

ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Not applicable.
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ITEM 13. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Exhibit

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (1)

32 Bylaws of the Registrant (1) ‘

4.1 Specimen of Common Stock certificate (1)

10.1 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan, as amended (1)

102 Agency Agreement between the Registrant and GKN Securities Corporation dated March 4, 1996 (2)

10.3 Form of Purchase Option issued to GKN Securities Corporation and its designees (2)

10.6 1996 Performance Equity Plan (3) ‘

10.7 Form of Purchase Option issued to GKN Securities Corporation and its designees dated June 18,
1997 (4)

10.8 Account Transfer and Purchase Agreement by and between the Registrant, H.E.R.C. Consumer
Products, Inc., and KBK Financial Incorporated dated September 22, 1997 (4)

10.9 Agreement by and between the Registrant and the U.S. Navy dated May 23, 1997 (4)

10.11 Form of Warrant Agreement between the Registrant and Jerry Ludwig and Associates dated

. September 3, 1997 (4)

10.12 Form of Warrant Agreement between the Registrant and Shelby Carl dated September 3, 1997 (4)
10.13 Amendment to Stock Option Agreement by and between Gary S. Glatter and the Registrant dated
March 23, 1995 (4) ‘

10.14 Amendment No. 2 to Stock Option Agreement by and between Gary S. Glatter and the Registrant

dated February 1, 1997 (4)
10.15 Employment Agreement by and between S. Steven Carl and the Registrant dated June 15, 1999 (5)
10.16 Employment Agreement dated June 15, 2001 between S. Steven Carl and the Registrant
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant
23.1 Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP
232 Consent of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form SB-2, (Registration No. 33-75166), as
filed with the Commission on February 11, 1994,

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1995, as filed with the Commission on April 15, 1996.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Schedule 14 A, as filed with the Commission on May 16, 1996,

(4) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1997, as filed with the Commission on March 31, 1998,

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended September 30,
1999, as filed with the Commission on November 15, 1999.

(b) Reports on Form §8-K

Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

H.E.R.C. PRODUCTS INCORPORATED

By:__ /s/S. Steven Carl
Dated: March 28, 2002 S. Steven Carl, Chief Executive Officer
‘ _and President (Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Position Date
/s/ S. Steven Carl * Chairman of the Board, Chief March 28, 2002
S. Steven Carl - ) Executive Officer, and President '
{s/ Michael H. Harader Chief Financial Officer (Principal ' March 28, 2002
Michael H. Harader " Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ John A. Gulick III Vice-President-Office of General Counsel March 28, 2002

John'A. Gulick I

/s/ R. John Armstrong ~ Director March 28, 2002
R. John Armstrong ‘ ' ‘

/s/ Robert Affholder Director March 28, 2002
Robert Aftholder
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
H.E.R.C. Products Incorporated
and Subsidiaries :
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of H.E.R.C. Products Incorporated and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the
year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. QOur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. '

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of H.E.R.C. Products Incorporated and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

\s\McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
March 11, 2002
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To H.E.R.C. Products Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash
flows of H.E.R.C. Products Incorporated (a Delaware corporation) and Subsidiaries (the Company) for
the year ended December 31, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes ‘
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. :

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respecfs, the
results of the Company's operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2000 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

/s/ Arthur Andersen LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
March 15, 2001
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H.E.R.C. PRODUCTS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31, 2001

Assets
Current Assets
Cash $ 75,759
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for 602,468
doubtful accounts of $35,269 (Note 10)
Inventories . 27,061
Costs of uncompleted contracts . ) o ' ' , 150,530
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings N ' 74,289
on uncompleted contracts (Note 2) '
Other receivables, includes unbilled amounts of $53,437 o ‘ 66,112 -
Prepaid expenses 51,008
Total Current Assets 1,047,227
Property and Equipment (Note 3) . ) ) ‘ .
Property and equipment ) o : 1,374,993
Less: accumulated depreciation ' o ‘ . __(938,755)
Net Property and Equipment ' : ' ) ) 436,238
Other Assets - B
Patents, net of accumulated amortization of $100,397 ' 107,366
Patents pending 117,954
Refundable deposits and other assets _ o . o 9,940
Total Other Assets - - ‘ ‘ . : 235,260
3 1,718,725
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 287,259
Accrued wages 117,350
Current portion of notes payable (Note 3) 19,944
Other accrued expenses 225,267
Total Current Liabilities 649,820
Long-Term Liabilities
Notes payable, net ot current portion (Note 3) 2,570
Total Liabilities 652,390
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 8 and 12)
Stockholders' Equity (Note 5)
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 1,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding zero shares -
Common stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 40,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding 11,864,872 shares 118,649
Additional paid-in capital 14,012,464
Accumulated deficit (13,064,778)
Total Stockholders' Equity 1,066,335

s 1718725

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consoclidated balance sheet.




" H.E.R.C. PRODUCTS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000

Sales : o : . $ 5066564 $ 4,266,735
Cost of Sales 3,463,248 2,271,346
Gross Profit 2,503,316 1,995,389
Selling Expenses ‘ ‘ 291509 393,556
General and Administrative Expenses o o 2,365,632 1',’86‘4,771
Operating Loss (153,825) (262,938)
Other Income (Expense)

Interest expense . - - (68,335) . . (15,014)

Miscellaneous - : : 6,175 19,964

Gain on sale or disposal of equipment 52,378 1,104

Total Other Income (Expense) ) (9,782) T 6,054

Net Loss before Income Taxes ' (163,607) '(256,884)

Income tax provision - -
Net Loss $  (163,607) $  (256,884)
Net Loss per Common Share -Basic and Diluted SR : ' $ 001) $ {0.02)
Weighted Average Common Shares Qutstanding: ’ B
Basic . 11,792,950 11,682,847
Diluted 11,792,950 11,682,847

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




H.E.R.C. PRODUCTS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Common Stock Additional
Paid-in Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Total
Balance,

December 31, 1999 11,652,853 § 116,529 $ 13,972,584 $ (12,644,287) $ 1,444,826
Net loss - - - (256,884) (256,884)
Issuance ot shares ot common stock (Note 5) 49,875 498 17,501 - 17,999

Balance,

December 31,2000 - 11,702,728 117,027 13,990,085 (12,901,171) 1,205,941
Netloss . . - (163,607) ' (163,607)
Issuance ot shares ot common stock (Note 5) 162,144 1,622 22379 - 24,001
Balance, .
December 31, 2001 11,864,872 $ 118,649 $ 14,012464 $ (13,064,778) $ 1,066,335

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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H.E.R.C. PRODUCTS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000
Cash Flows From Operating Activities : .
Net loss $ (163,607) $ . (256,884)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash ’
provided by (used-in) operating activities oo : : :
Depreciation and amortization ) 258,379 244,637

Gain on sale or disposal of equipment (52,378) ‘ (1,104)
Common stock issued for services _ . . 24,001 : 17,999
{(Increase) decrease in assets ‘ ‘
Trade accounts receivable (274,691) 545,268
Inventories 11,070 7,859
Costs of uncompleted contracts (77,633) 45,546
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings L , . . :
on uncompleted contracts (74,289) -
Other receivables ’ : (55,761) C (1,740)
Prepaid expenses ‘ 33,228 29,544
Refundable deposits and other assets - 12,913 ' 39,726
Increase (decrease) in liabilities - : : . )
Accounts payable 182,032 (158,235)
Accrued wages and other accrued expenses . 164,453 . (166,937)
Customer deposits (42,617) 42 617
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (54,900) 388,296
Cash Flows From Investing Activities : ‘ ' S ‘
Capital expenditures (120,032) . (112,962)
Cash received from the sale of equipment =~ 135,000 - 7170
Expenditures related to patents and patents pending . : (45,530) (22,274)
Net cash used in investing activities ‘ (30,562) , (128,066)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities '
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable and long-term debt 198,262 151,870
Principal payments under notes payable ) (339,433) (175,430)
Net cash used in financing activities , L (141171) (23,560)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . : (226,633) - . 236,670
Cash at beginning of period . ) 302,392 65,722
Cash at end of period ' 8 75,759 $ 302,392

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid during the period for interest . 8 68,335 $ - 15,014
Cash paid during the period for income taxes ; $ - $ , -
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities

Purchase of assets through assumption of debt ' ' $ 150,517 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. ' F-7




H.E.R.C. PRODUCTS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2001 and 2000

1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

"H.E.R.C. Products Incorporated and subsidiaries (the “Company”) provides pipeline rehabilitation, tank
cleaning, and other services for marine, fire protection, potable water, wastewater, industrial and other
~systems and manufactures and sells specialty chemicals. The Company provides services primarily to
the U.S. Government and to U.S. corporations in the United States of America and in various locations
throughout the world.

The Company's strategy has involved concentrating its efforts on providing pipeline rehabilitation and
other system cleaning services to a diverse group of customers. The Company has undertaken and
~ continues to undertake substantial efforts to diversify its customer base and expand its markets. In 2001
and 2000, sales to the U.S. Navy under the Portsmouth CIS contract were 45% and 73%, respectively, of
consolidated sales. The 5-year U.S. Navy contract is renewable each year at the option of the U.S. Navy.
The U.S. Navy has renewed the contract for each option year including the final option year thatl ends
September 2002.. For each year the U.S. Navy renews the contract, the minimum-annual amount that the
U.S. Navy must spend with HERC to meet the obligations of the contract is approximately $75,000. The
5-year U.S. Navy c'ontract expires in September 2002. Included in accounts receivable at December 31,
2001 is $181,204 for the U.S. Navy. '

. ’Principles of Consolidation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly
owned  subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. All references to the Company herein refer to the Company and its subsidiaries.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingeht assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual resulis could differ from those estimates.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Income Taxes

Deferred taxes are provided on a liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible temporary differences and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary

differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and
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liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when it is
determined to be more likely than not that some portion-or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates
on the date of enactment. ‘

Stock-Based Compensation " S L

The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation under the requirements of Accounting
Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, which does not require compensation to be recorded if the
consideration to be received is at least equal to fair value of the common stock to be ‘received at the
measurement date. Nonemployee stock-based transactions are accounted for under the requirements of
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, which requires compensation.to be recorded
based on the fair value of the securities issued or the services received, whichever is more.reliably

measurable.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of financial instruments has been determined by the Company using available
market information and valuation methodologies. Considerable judgment is required .in estimating fair
values. Accordingly, the estimates may not be indicative of the amounts that would be realized in a
current market exchange. The carrying values of trade accounts receivable, accounts payable, other
accrued liabilities. and notes payable approximate fair value due to the short maturities of these

instruments.

Inventories .
Inventories are stated at market cost (net realizable value). Cost is determined by a method that

approximates first-in, first-out. Inventories consist primarily of raw materials and finished goods.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of
cash and trade accounts receivable. The Company from time to time may have bank deposits in excess
of the FDIC insurance limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and

believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash.

Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had no components of comprehensive

income and, therefore, net income is equal to comprehensive income.




Property, Equipment and Depreciation
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of
the assets by the straight-line method for financial reporting.

Property and equipment at December 31, 2001 are:

Equipment $1,150,903
Office furniture, computers and leasehold improvements 224,090

1,374,993
Less accumulated depreciation - _(938,755)
Net property and equipment $ 436,238

The useful lives of property and equipment for computing depreciation range from three to ten years.
Depreciation expense was $237,603 and $219,208 for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The depreciation expense on assets acquired under capital lease is included with
depreciation expense on owned assets. Assets acquired under capital leases totaled $27,268 and
accumulated depreciation on these assets totaled $12,251 at December 31, 2001.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets and intangibles. = Long-lived
assets and certain identifiable intangible assets to be held and used in operations are reviewed for
potential impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be fully recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the sum of the expected long-term
undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the long-lived assets being evaluated. Future
losses may be recorded if cash flows are less than expected. '

Patents and Patents Pending

Patents issued are stated at cost and amortized on the straight-line basis over 10 years. Costs for patents
pending are amortized when the patents are awarded. Unamortized costs for patents that are denied or
have no continuing application to the Company’s ongoing businesses as well as maintenance costs are
expensed. Such expenses were approximately $12,000 and $8,000 for the years ended 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Accounts Receivable

The Company factors certain receivables without recourse which meet the criteria for sales and are
treated accordingly.

F-10




Revenue Recognition

For chemical product sales, the Company recognizes revenue at the time products are shipped to
customers. For most service projects, the Company recognizes revenue and costs when the services are
completed. For fixed price contracts in excess of 3 month duration, revenue is recognized on the
percentage of completion method, measured by the percentage of cost incurred to date to estimated total
cost for each contract. This method is used because management considers total cost to be the best
available measure of progress on these contracts. During 2001 the Company was awarded a contract
that is expected to have a duration that is longer than normal. Thus, the percentage of completion method
was initially adopted in 2001.

Contract costs include all direct material, subcontract labor and other costs related to contract
performance, such as indirect labor, supplies, tools and repairs. Selling, general and administrative costs
are charged to expense as incurred. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made
in the period in which such losses are determined. Changes in job performance, job conditions, and
estimated profitability, including those arising from contract penaity provisions and final contract
settiements may result in revisions to estimates of contract costs and profits and are recognized in the
period in whiqh the revisions are determined.

The current asset, “costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted coniracts”
represents revenue recognized in excess of amounts billed. The current liability, “billings in excess of
costs on uncompleted contracts,” represents billings in excess of revenue recognized.

Research and Development
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. The Company estimates that it spent
approximately $12,000 and $24,000 on research and development activities during fiscal 2001 and 2000,

respectively.




Loss Per Share
Basic loss per common share is-computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of

shares of common stock outstanding during the year.

A reconciliation of the basic and diluted loss per share (EPS) computation for the years ended December
31, 2001 and 2000 is as follows:
Year Ended December 31, 2001 -

Net Loss Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
Basic EPS® : $ (163,607)  11,792950 § (0.01)
Effect of stock options and warrants : - -
Diluted EPS - $_ (163,607) 11,792950 §. {0.01)
Year Ended December 31, 2000
Net Loss Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) . Amount
Basic EPS $ (256,884) 11,682,847 $  (0.02)
Effect of stock options and warrants - -
Diluted EPS $ (256,884) 11682847 $ {0.02)

At December 31, 2001, there were 50,000 options outstanding with an exercise price of $0.09 per share.
These options would be dilutive if there was net income. These options have not been included in the
calculation since they would be anti-dilutive.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards,

In October 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets". This Statement addresses the financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal
of long-lived assets and supersedes FASB Statement No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of', and the accounting and reporting provisions
of APB Opinion No. 30, "Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a
Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions',
for the disposal of a segment of a business (as previously defined in that Opinion). The applicable
provisions of this Statement are effective for the Company’s financial statements beginning January 1,
2002. Management does not anticipate that the adoption of this Statement will have a significant effect on
the Company's financial statements.

SFAS 141, Business Combinations, and SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, modify the
accounting for business combinations, goodwill and identifiable intangible assets. As of January 1, 2002,
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all goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets:must be tested for impairment anda transition adjustment
will be recognized. Management does not believe that this will have a material impact on its liquidity or

results of operations.

SFAS 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, Requires recognition of the fair value of
obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets when there is a legal obligation to incur
such costs. This amount is accounted for like an additional element of the corresponding asset’s cost,
and is depreciated over that asset's useful life. SFAS 143 will be effective for the Company on January 1,
2003. Management does not believe that this will have a material impact on its liquidity or results of
operations. '

2. Costs and Estimated Earnings on Uncompleted Contracts

The components of contracts in progress consist of the following at December 31, 2001:

Total amounts of contracts - ‘ S b o $ 871,71
Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts -.$ 305,008
Estimated earnings 52,060
. 357,068
Less billings to date - : s ’ ' ‘ 282,779

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of
billings on uncompleted contracts- o ‘ S 8 742

3. Long Term Debt and Other Financing Arrangements
Long term debt and other financing arrangements consist of the following at December 31, 2001:

Equipment financing $ 14,500
insurance financing. ‘ ;! o 8,014
Total financing : ' ' . 22,514
Less current portion o - (19.,944)

Total long term debt ' ‘ : ' $ 2570

4. Income Taxes
The Company has experienced recurring losses and as such, there’is no ‘provision (benefit) for income

taxes.
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The components of deferred taxes as of December 31, 2001, are as follows;

Current deferred tax assets:

Accruals not currently deductibie for tax $ 26,400
Current portion of valuation allowance . ' (26,400)
$ -

Non-current deferred tax assets:

Equipment ‘ ‘ $ 67,800
Net operating loss carry forwards for federal and state purposes 2,740,000
Non-current portion of valuation allowance (2,807,800)

$___:__

The Company was in a consolidated tax loss position for the years ended December 31, 2001 and
December 31, 2000, and therefore had no current federal income tax expense. Deferred tax assets as of
December 31, 2001 arising primarily from loss carry forward benefits have not been recorded because of
the uncertainty of realizing such benefits.

Because the Company has no prior year carry-back taxable income, the expected tax benefit from the
2001 and 2000 operating losses results in deferred tax assets which have been fully reserved

Net operating loss carry forwards for federal tax purposes totaled approximately $7,325,000 at
December 31, 2001. These losses are available for carry forward against future years' taxable income,
subject to certain limitations, and expire in various years from 2008 through 2022.

5. Stockholders’ Equi@y

Common Stock

In April 1996, the Comp‘]any completed the private placement of 3,214,902 units at a price of $.85 per unit
and received net proceeds of approximately $2,277,000. Each unit consisted of one share of Common
Stock and one watrant, which entitled the holder to purchase one share of Common Stock at a price of $2
per share, subject to adjustment, until April 3, 1999. All 3,214,902 warrants expired on April 3, 1999. In
addition, the placement agent was granted a warrant to acquire 321,490 units at $.9375 per unit which
consists of one share of Common Stock and one warrant to acquire one share of Common Stock at $2.00
per share. In June 1997, the placement agent partially exercised the units and acquired 150,000 shares
of common stock and 150,000 warrants. Such warrants are currently exercisable and expire on June 18,
2002. The remaining 171,490 units expired April 3, 2001. In connection with the partial exercise, the




Company granted warrants to purchase an aggregate of 150,000 shares of Common Stock at $1.3125 per
share to the placement agent. Such warrants are currently exercisable and expire on June 18, 2002.
During 2001 and 2000, the Company issued 162,144 and 49,875 shares of Common Stock, respectively,
. toits outside directors as a part of their annual Compensation.

Warrants . .

As of December 31, 2001, outstanding warrants issued for the purchase of shares of Common Stock to
various consultants at exercise prices ranging from $0.21875 to $2.00 per share totaled 142,500. The
Company valued the warrants at the date of grant usihg a Black-Scholes model and is amortizing the
costs over the service period. All such warrants are currently exercisable within the above price range and
expire at various dates through September 2005. ‘

In 1996, the placement agent for the 1996 private offering of Preferred Stock was granted a warrant to
acquire 85,000 shares of Common Stock at $3.00 per share. The warrants expired in December 2001.

Warrants for the purchase of 125,000 shares of common stock were issued to a lender in September
1997. Such warrants are currently exercisable at prices ranging from $1.18 to $1.475 through August
2003. ’

6. Stock Based Compensation

In October 1993, the Company adopted an incentive stock option plan for 350,000 shares of Common
Stock that may be granted to employees. The Company adopted an additional plan in 1996 for 1,000,000
shares of Common Stock for grant to employees, officers, directors and consultants of the Company. The
exercise price per share may not be less than the fair market value on the date of the grant. Generally,

options granted vest over a period up to five years and expire over varying periods through 2011.

In addition to the above plans, the Company granted: (1) a former officer options to purchase 250,000
shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $1.75 per share. The options are currently exercisable
and expire not later than December 31, 2005; (2) various key employees options to purchase 140,000
shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.3125 per share. Of the 140,000 options granted
through 1995, 40,000 expired in December 2001 and the remaining 100,000 are currently exercisable and
expire December 2002.
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Overall activity in the Company’s stock options:

Years ended December 31, -

2001 T 2000

- Weighted- S ' Weighted-

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Options Price Options Price

Outstanding, at beginning of year 1,104,500 .. $ 067 - 1,064,500 E $0.69
Granted _ 482,000 ‘ 0.14 80,000 036
Exercised - - L - - -
Canceled/Expired .- . (87,800) - T 0.33 *(40,000) 0.37
Outstanding at end of year 1,498,700 052 . - - 1,104500. -~ - . - 0.67
Exercisable at end of year 1,227,500 0.60 956,000 0.72

Details regarding the options outstanding at December 31, 2001:

Outstanding ‘ © Exercisable - '
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Exercise - . - Average Average - © - Average
Price ‘ . Remaining _Exercise ‘ Exercise
Range ~ Number Life Price ‘Number Price
$0.09 - $0.10 290,000 9.82 $0.098 150,000 $0.100
$0.17 - $0.25 192,000 8.40 $0.194 125,000 $0.190
$0.30 - $0.32 706,700 1.67 $0.312 663,500 . $0.312
$0.37 - $0.40 30,000 6.48 - $0.395 9,000 $0.391
$1.00 - $1.75 280.000 2.28 $1723 280000  $1.723
| 1,498,700 . 1,227,500
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The weighted-average grant-date fair value of stock options granted to employees during the years and
the weighted average significant assumptions used to determine those fair values using a Black-Scholes
option pricing model, and the pro forme effe'.ct on earhings of the fair value accounting for stock options
under SFAS No. 123 are: o

Years ended December 31,

. 2001 2000

Weighted average grant-date fair value . $%0.13 $0.27
Significant assumptions (weighted average)

Risk-free interest rate at grant date ' 4.65-5.16% . 6.49%

Expected stock price volatility 100.00% 89.40%

Expected dividend payout -- --

Expected option life 5 years 5 years

Forfeiture rate 5% -
Net loss IR K .

As reported $(163,607) . . $(256,884).

Pro forma (205,464) (264,386)
Net loss per share of Common Stock :

As reported $ (0.01) $ (0.02)

Pro forma . (0.02) ‘ : (0.02)

The expected option life considers historical option exercuse patterns and future changes to those exercise
patterns anhcupated at the date of grant

7. Segment Information

For the year ended December 31, 2001 the Company's major business segments are pipe cleaning
services, tank cleaning services and industrial chemical sales. FO( the year ended -December'31, 2000
the Company’s mejor business segmehts are pipe cleaning services ahd industrial chemical sales.”

Information by segrhent for the year ended December 31, 2001:

Pipe Tank Industrial Corporate Consolidated
Cleaning Cleaning Chemical
Services Services Sales » ,
Sales $ 4,381,089 $ 1,335,795 $249,680 $ - $5,966,564
Income (loss) from“continuing operations 1,076,740 24,950 128,212 {1,393,509) (163,607)
Total assets _ 747,195 533,768 34,278 - 403,484 1,718,725
Depreciation and amortization . 186,223 18,427 6,723 47,006 258,379

Capital expenditures ' '4 - 64,002 189,973 2,485 14,089 270,549




Information by segment for the year ended December 31, 2000:

Pipe industrial Corporate . Consolidated
Cleaning Chemical
Services Sales
Sales $ 3,862,563 $404,172 $ - $4,266,735
Income (loss) from continuing operations 747,085 142,086 (1,146,055) (256,884)
Total assets ' 856,639 28,042 660,436 1,545,117
Depreciation and amortization _ 179,889 7,511 57,237 244,637
Capital expenditures 90,809 13,757 8,396 - 112,962

Segment profitability is determined before allocation of corporate overhead.

8. Commitments and Contingencies

Environmental Matters ’ »
Management believes the Company is in compliance with federal and state environmental regulations
that pertain to the sale and use of its products. '

Litigation

A civil claim under federal civil rights statutes has been filed seeking an unspecified amount of lost
earnings and compensation for loss of future pensions and benefits, damages for non-‘pecuniary losses,
punitive damages, and attorneys fees, expert fees and costs. The Company has obtained local Iegai
counsel and estimates the range of potential loss to be less than $50,000.

Waste Disposal Liability

The Company has a facility in Virginia that is currently used to store waste. Before the lease of this
facility expires, the Company will be required to properly dispose of all waste. Management has
estimated the cost of disposal to be $40,000. This amount has been accrued at December 31, 2001.
The facility lease expires in 2004. | |

Lease Commitments

The Company has operating leases, expiring through 2004, for office and warehouse facilities in Phoenix,
Arizona, Portsmouth, Virginia and National City, California and for office and other equipment. Rental
expense associated with all operating leases was $163,056 and $247,368 for the years ended December
31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Future minimum payments under operating ieases, exclusive of any subleases, as of December 31, 2001
are:
Years Ending

December 31, Amount
2002 $ 78,160
2003 50,431
2004 3.700

$132.201

9. Related Party Transactions

The Company has entered into transactions with @ subcontractor whose President is a member of the
Company’s Board of Directors. Under the terms of this agreement, the subcontractor has the right of first
refusal for subcontractor work in certain territories. In exchange, the subcontractor will notify the
Company of any business opportunities in these territories. Amounts paid to the subcontractor pursuant
to this contract were $20,944 and $1,656 in 2001, and 2000, respectively. The Company also paid a
commissioned sales representative, who is also a greater than 5% stockholder, $26,250 in 2001 for sales

commissions.

10. Agreement with Factor

The Company has an arrangement for a factoring facility whereby the factor purchases eligible
receivables and advances 80% of the purchased amount to the Company. Purchased receivables may
not exceed $600,000 at any one time. Either party may cancel the arrangement with 30 days notice. At
December 31, 2001, there was $416,976 of factored receivables of which the Company has received
$333,581 from the factor. This $333,581 and $4,170 in interest eXpense are not shown as receivables.
This arrangement is accounted for as a sale of receivables on which the factor has recourse to the 20%
residual of aggregate receivables purchased and outstanding. Interest payable by the Company to the
factor is calculated as a fixed discount fee equal to 1% of the amount of the receivable factored plus a
variable (2% above the institutions base rate, with a minimum of 7%) discount fee computed on the
amount advanced to the Company and accruing on the basis of actual days elapsed frorﬁ the date of the
80% advance until 5 days after collection of such account receivable by the factor at a per annum rate
equal to an internal rate set by the factor. The rate at December 31, 2001 was 7%. In connection with
this agreement, the Company is required to maintain certain financial covenants. In the event of a breach

of representation, warranty or agreement, the institution has a security interest in the Company’s assets.
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11. 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan

The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan available to all eligible employees who are age 21 (iwenty-
one) and have completed six months of service. The Board approved an employer matching contribution
of 25% totaling $28,349 for 2001. '

12. Employment Agreements

In connection with certain employment agreements there were $37,000 of bonuses awarded to t\;vo
officers for the year ended December 31, 2001. Each .agreement is for a term of one-year. One of the
contracts has renewed under its terms. Each agreement includes a non-compete clause upon termination
of employment and an auto allowance or company car. One non-officer employée was granted 25,000
stock options under the 1996 Performance Equity Plan upon éxecution of that employee’s agreement.
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